
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
 

TUESDAY, JULY 21, 2020 
7:00 P.M. 

(Note Time Change) 
        

HENDRICKSON ROOM 
 

- AGENDA - 
 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. ROLL CALL 
 

III. PUBLIC COMMENT  
 

IV. LIAISON REPORTS 
 

- FRIENDS OF THE ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL 
LIBRARY 

 

- ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY 
FOUNDATION 

 
V. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD 

MEETING OF JUNE 16, 2020 (Action Item 1) 
 

VI. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL BOARD 
MEETING OF JULY 13, 2020 (Action Item 2) 

 
VII. REVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE PERIOD 

ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 (Item 3) 
 



VIII. REVIEW OF THE CHECK REGISTER FOR THE PERIOD 
ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 (Action Item 4) 

 
IX. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 
X. OLD BUSINESS 

 

- MAKERSPACE PROJECT UPDATE (Item 5)  
Staff and representatives from Williams Architects will provide an 
update on the makerspace building project at 112 North Belmont 
Avenue. 

 

- LIBRARY STAFFING AND CUSTOMER SERVICE 

CHANGES DUE TO COVID-19 (Item 6)  
Staff will provide an update of the building reopening with limited 
hours and services.    

 

- ADOPTION OF 2021 BUDGET TARGETS (Action Item 7)  
Adoption of budget targets used in the preparation of the 2021 
budget   

 
XI. NEW BUSINESS 

 

- REVIEW AND ACCEPTANCE OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
REPORT (Action Item 8)  
Review and acceptance of the auditor’s statement on Auditing 
Standards letter, the auditor’s letter of management and the annual 
financial report for the year ended December 31, 2019 
 

- REVIEW OF 2019 BUDGET VERSUS ACTUAL (Item 9)  
Review of the final 2019 actual results and discussion of variances 
from the 2019 budget 

 
XII. OTHER 

 
XIII. CLOSED SESSION IN ACCORDANCE WITH 5 ILCS 120/2 

(C) (21) FOR THE PURPOSE OF REVIEWING CLOSED 
SESSION MINUTES AND WITH 5 ILCS 120/2 (C) (1) FOR 
THE PURPOSE OF DISCUSSING PERSONNEL ISSUES 



 
XIV. REVIEW OF CLOSED SESSION MINUTES AND OTHER 

ITEM(S) FROM CLOSED SESSION FOR ACTION 
 

XV. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
Final vote or action may be taken at the meeting on any agenda item subject 
matter listed above, unless the agenda line item specifically states otherwise. 
 
Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require 
certain accommodations to allow them to observe and/or participate are 
requested to contact the library’s Business Office (phone 847-506-2611; TTY 
847-392-1119) 48 hours in advance, if possible, to allow for the arrangement 
of reasonable accommodations. 
 

 



(Action Item 1) 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

OF THE ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY HELD ON TUESDAY, JUNE 

16, 2020. 
 

06.20.01 A regular meeting of the Board of Library Trustees of the Arlington Heights Memorial 

Library was called to order on Tuesday, June 16, 2020, at 6:30 p.m. by President Greg 

Zyck. Due to a change with the Open Meetings Act on June 12, based on the Illinois 

Governor declaring a state of disaster due to COVID-19, the board met virtually via Zoom 

as it was not able to gather in groups of more than 10 people during Phase 3 of the Restore 

Illinois plan. The meeting was hosted on a live stream on the library’s YouTube channel 

for public viewing. 

 

06.20.02 Upon ROLL CALL, the following answered Present via teleconference: Trustees 

Medal, Ruhl, Smart, Supplitt, Tangney, Thanopoulos, and Zyck. 

 

 Absent: None 

 

 Also present via teleconference: Michael Driskell, Executive Director; Shannon Distel, 

Deputy Director; Donna Ekl, Director of Finance; Mary Hastings, Director of 

Communications and Marketing; Janet Moravec, Business Office Administrator; Julie 

Doren, Business Office Assistant; Andy Dogan, Williams Architects; Natalie Clemens, 

Williams Architects; Carrie Kotera, Williams Architects.   

 

06.20.03    There was no PUBLIC COMMENT. 

 

06.20.04   LIAISON REPORTS 

 

- FRIENDS OF THE ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY – Mr. 

Driskell reported the Friends are planning their August book sale but due to the limits on 

large gatherings are considering other sale options such as the Farmer’s Market or a 

parking lot sale. They are also continuing to work on possible electronic payment options. 

The Friends plan to restart activity in their workroom and made a second donation for little 

free libraries throughout the community. Thank you to Bookmobile Supervisor Teri 

Scallon and bookmobile staff who will continue to restock the little free libraries 

throughout the summer.  

 

- ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY FOUNDATION – Mr. Driskell 

reported the Foundation is working with ITW on kitchen items for the Belmont 

makerspace. President Lauree Harp and Treasurer Gary McClung are working on 

elevating the Foundation’s GuideStar status from silver to gold. The Foundation received 

matching funds from the Illinois State Questers for external lamps at the Belmont property.  

 

06.20.05 Trustee Thanopoulos moved APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR 

BOARD MEETING OF MAY 19, 2020 (Action Item 1). Trustee Smart seconded. 

Upon ROLL CALL, the following answered Aye: Trustees Medal, Ruhl, Smart, 



 2 

Supplitt, Tangney, Thanopoulos and Zyck. Nay: none. The minutes were approved as 

submitted. 

    

06.20.06    REVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MAY 31, 

2020 (Item 2) – Ms. Ekl reported the library received $7.5 million in real estate taxes as 

of May 31; this is 53% of the total real estate revenue budgeted for 2020. 

     

06.20.07 REVIEW OF THE CHECK REGISTER FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MAY 31, 

2020 (Action Item 3) – Ms. Ekl provided information in response to trustees’ questions 

about individual expenditures. 

 

Trustee Supplitt moved THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES ACCEPTS THE 

CHECK REGISTER FOR MAY 31, 2020, IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,014,940.72. 
Trustee Smart seconded. Upon ROLL CALL, the following answered Aye: Trustees 

Medal, Ruhl, Smart, Supplitt, Tangney, Thanopoulos and Zyck. Nay: none. The motion 

carried. 

 

06.20.08    EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT – Mr. Driskell highlighted Youth Services’ 

Stay-at-Home DIY activity kits for kids and tweens were enjoyed by 257 customers in 

May; the wrap-up of our February-March exhibit, When Home Won’t Let You Stay, with 

artist James Bowey joining 28 community members on Zoom for a conversation about 

his body of work, the library exhibit and the importance of empathy; the library’s summer 

reading challenge promotion where staff connected with 1,987 students by visiting nearly 

100 elementary and middle school Zoom classrooms; Inklings’ teen writers collaborated 

with Teen Services staff to create the premiere issue of Quaranzine!; curbside delivery 

began on May 21 with materials handling staff delivering holds to customer vehicles and 

processing returns and holds; dedicated library staff and gardening enthusiasts 

volunteered to plant a butterfly garden in front of the library funded by the Friends of the 

Library; sixteen little free libraries were stocked throughout the community with 250 

books donated by the Friends of the Library; virtual reference handled 900 chats in May, 

an increase of 132% from this time last year; new Readers Advisory program Favorite 

Things debuted, providing an informal and conversational space for staff and customers 

to share what they’re watching, reading or listening to; a total of 35 readers attended four 

virtual book discussions, all titles were available on hoopla; virtual resource usage 

continues to increase with the biggest growth on the library’s YouTube channel due to 

additional content supporting virtual programming;Youth Outreach Emily Muszynski 

completed a dual-degree program, earning master’s degrees in Public History and Library 

Information Science; Library Delivery and Accessibility Supervisor Katie Myers 

completed the ADA Coordinator Training Certification Program (ACTCP). 

 

06.20.09 OLD BUSINESS  

 

- MAKERSPACE PROJECT UPDATE (Item 4) – Representatives from Williams 

Architects presented an update on the progress of the makerspace building project at 112 

North Belmont Avenue, providing updated conceptual drawings of the space and the 

upcoming proposal requests for the remainder of the construction project.  



 3 

 

  - AUTHORIZATION TO ACCEPT MAKERSPACE HVAC EQUIPMENT 

REPLACEMENT BID (Action Item 5) – A public bid was held for roof and HVAC 

equipment replacement for the building at 112 North Belmont Avenue. No bids were 

received for the roof. Seven bids were received for the HVAC equipment replacement, 

and a public bid opening was held via Zoom on June 3. Staff is seeking authorization to 

move forward with the project by accepting the lowest qualified bid. That bid was 

submitted by Jensen’s Plumbing & Heating Inc., a known reputable company. It is 

recommended to engage in a contract with Jensen’s Plumbing & Heating, Inc., for the 

base bid amount of $137,600 plus a 10% contingency.  

 
Trustee Supplitt moved THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES AWARDS THE 

HVAC EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT PROJECT TO JENSEN’S PLUMBING 

& HEATING INC. FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $151,360, WHICH 

INCLUDES A 10% CONTINGENCY, PENDING ATTORNEY REVIEW OF THE 

CONTRACT. Trustee Tangney seconded. Upon ROLL CALL, the following answered 

Aye: Trustees Medal, Ruhl, Smart, Supplitt, Tangney, Thanopoulos and Zyck. Nay: none. 

The motion carried. 

 

- LIBRARY CLOSURE DUE TO COVID-19 (Action Item 6) – The board discussed 

the library’s response to Coronavirus, the State of Illinois stay-at-home order and its 

impact to services and staffing. Under Governor Pritzker’s Executive Orders each 

government body, including public libraries, is authorized to determine its essential 

governmental functions. Mr. Driskell recommended board approval to reopen the library 

building to the public with limited hours and services when our region enters Phase 4 of 

the State of Illinois Restore Illinois plan, with a projected reopening date of June 26.  

 

Trustee Thanopoulos moved THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES AUTHORIZES 

THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO REOPEN THE LIBRARY BUILDING TO 

THE PUBLIC WITH LIMITED HOURS AND SERVICES, AS THE STATE OF 

ILLINOIS OPENS IN PHASE 4 OF THE RESTORE ILLINOIS REOPENING 

PLAN. Trustee Tangney seconded. Upon ROLL CALL, the following answered Aye: 

Trustees Medal, Ruhl, Smart, Supplitt, Tangney, Thanopoulos and Zyck. Nay: none. The 

motion carried. 

 

- TEMPORARY POLICY DUE TO COVID-19 (Action Item 7) – The board discussed 

the recommended policy changes to follow safety guidelines by implementing temporary 

protocols as needed and in alignment with the Restore Illinois plan and the State of Illinois, 

and guidelines from the Centers for Disease Control and the World Health Organization 

through the end of Phase 4 of the Restore Illinois plan and the reopening of the library 

building to the public. The board will continue its review of the temporary policy changes 

at its next board meeting.  

                

Trustee Thanopoulos moved THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES RECOGNIZES 

AND ADOPTS THE TEMPORARY COVID-19 POLICY, AMENDING EXISTING 

POLICIES, EFFECTIVE MARCH 14, 2020 THROUGH OUR NEXT BOARD 



 4 

MEETING. Trustee Ruhl seconded. Upon ROLL CALL, the following answered Aye: 

Trustees Medal, Ruhl, Smart, Supplitt, Tangney, Thanopoulos and Zyck. Nay: none. The 

motion carried. 

 

06.20.10   NEW BUSINESS 

 

- REVIEW ISSUANCE OF NONRESIDENT LIBRARY CARDS AND APPROVAL 

OF NONRESIDENT CARD FEE (Action Item 8) – Each June, the board affirms its 

commitment to continue to offer a nonresident fee card option under Public Act 92-1066 

and approves the nonresident card fee for the upcoming year.  

 
Trustee Medal moved THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES AFFIRMS ITS 

CONTINUED COMMITMENT TO OFFERING A NONRESIDENT LIBRARY CARD 

OPTION UNDER PUBLIC ACT 92-1066 AND SETS THE ANNUAL FEE FOR THE 

CARD, USING THE GENERAL MATHEMATICAL FORMULA METHOD, AT $447 

EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2020 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2021. Trustee Tangney seconded. Upon 

ROLL CALL, the following answered Aye: Trustees Medal, Ruhl, Smart, Supplitt, 

Tangney, Thanopoulos and Zyck. Nay: none. The motion carried. 
 

- 2021 LIBRARY HOLIDAY DATES/CLOSINGS (Action Item 9) – The board reviewed   

a schedule of proposed library holiday dates and closings for 2021.  

 

Trustee Tangney moved THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES APPROVES THE 2021 

LIBRARY HOLIDAY DATES AND CLOSINGS. Trustee Thanopoulos seconded. Upon 

ROLL CALL, the following answered Aye: Trustees Medal, Ruhl, Smart, Supplitt, 

Tangney, Thanopoulos and Zyck. Nay: none. The motion carried. 

 
- 2021 BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE (Action Item 10) – The board reviewed a 

schedule of proposed dates for the 2021 board and Committee of the Whole meetings.  

 

Trustee Supplitt moved THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES APPROVES THE 2021 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS AS DISCUSSED. 

Trustee Tangney seconded. Upon ROLL CALL, the following answered Aye: Trustees 

Medal, Ruhl, Smart, Supplitt, Tangney, Thanopoulos and Zyck. Nay: none. The motion 

carried. 

 

06.20.11   OTHER 

  

- President Zyck discussed holding the next board meeting at the library while 

observing social distancing. He discussed canceling the Committee of the Whole 

meeting on July 6 and scheduling a special board meeting on July 13. 

 

- Trustee Medal suggested future board meetings start at 7:00 p.m. 

 

- The board congratulated Communication and Marketing Director Mary Hastings for 

her work on the State of Illinois Live and Learn grant. The library was awarded $50,000 

that will be put toward ADA/accessibility related components of the makerspace project. 



 5 

 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Trustee Thanopoulos moved ADJOURNMENT. Trustee 

Medal seconded. Upon ROLL CALL, the following answered Aye: Trustees Medal, Ruhl, Smart, 

Supplitt, Tangney, Thanopoulos and Zyck. Nay: none. The motion carried and the meeting was 

adjourned at 8:32 p.m. 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Carole Medal, Vice President/Secretary 

 

_____________________________ 

Julie Doren, Recorder 

 
 
 
 

 

 



(Action Item 2) 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES OF 

THE ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY HELD ON MONDAY, JULY 13, 

2020. 
 

 

07.20.01 A special meeting of the Board of Library Trustees of the Arlington Heights Memorial 

Library was called to order in the Hendrickson Room of the Arlington Heights 

Memorial Library on Monday, July 13, 2020, at 7:03 p.m. by President Greg Zyck. 

  

07.20.02 Upon ROLL CALL, the following answered Present: Trustees Medal, Smart, Supplitt, 

Tangney, Thanopoulos and Zyck. 

 

 Also present: Michael Driskell, Executive Director; Shannon Distel, Deputy Director; 

Donna Ekl, Director of Finance; Mary Hastings, Director of Communications and 

Marketing; Julie Doren, Business Office Assistant. 

 

07.20.03  There was no PUBLIC COMMENT  

 

Trustee Ruhl joined the meeting at 7:08 p.m.  

 

07.20.04 TEMPORARY POLICY DUE TO COVID-19 (Action Item 1) – The board discussed 

the recommended policy changes to follow safety guidelines by implementing temporary 

protocols as needed and in alignment with the Restore Illinois plan and the State of Illinois, 

and guidelines from the Centers for Disease Control and the World Health Organization 

through the end of Phase 4 of the Restore Illinois plan and the reopening of the library 

building to the public. The board will continue its review of the temporary policy changes 

at the September 15, 2020 board meeting.  

                

Trustee Smart moved THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES RECOGNIZES AND 

ADOPTS THE TEMPORARY COVID-19 POLICY, AMENDING EXISTING 

POLICIES, EFFECTIVE MARCH 14, 2020 UNTIL THE SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 

BOARD MEETING. Trustee Thanopoulos seconded. Upon ROLL CALL, the following 

answered Aye: Trustees Medal, Ruhl, Smart, Supplitt, Tangney, Thanopoulos and Zyck. 

Nay: none. The motion carried. 

 

07.20.05  REVIEW OF 2021 BUDGET TARGETS (Item 2) – Ms. Ekl reviewed proposed targets 

for 2021, which includes a salary range increase to accommodate the $15 minimum wage 

requirement in 2025 and cost of living increases, and a projected reinsurance cost increase 

by the library’s current property carrier.  

 

07.20.06   OTHER 

 

- The board discussed changing the start time for regularly scheduled board and 

Committee of the Whole meetings from 7:30 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.  

 



 2 

07.20.07    Trustee Supplitt moved THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES ADJOURNS TO 

CLOSED SESSION IN ACCORDANCE WITH 5 ILCS 120/2 (C) (1) FOR THE 

PURPOSE OF DISCUSSING PERSONNEL ISSUES. Trustee Tangney seconded. 

All were in favor and the motion carried. The board went into closed session at 7:45 p.m. 

 

 The board returned to open session at 8:16 p.m. 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Trustee Smart moved ADJOURNMENT. Trustee 

Tangney seconded. All were in favor and the meeting was adjourned at 8:18 p.m. 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Carole Medal, Vice President/Secretary 

 

_____________________________ 

Julie Doren, Recorder 





































































July 16, 2020 (Action Item 4)

 

Fund Number Fund Name Fund Total

291 General Fund - Library $230,320.29

491 Capital Projects Fund - Library $28,303.85

Total Disbursements $258,624.14

Payrolls Paid

6/5/2020 $283,912.07

6/19/2020 $288,343.65

$572,255.72  

Journal Entry Expenditures by Village On Behalf Of the Library

6/30/2020 Group Insurance 108,928.33        

6/30/2020 IMRF 68,211.22          

6/30/2020 Social Security 34,616.60          

6/30/2020 Medicare 8,095.71            

$219,851.86  

Total Disbursed $1,050,731.72

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

CHECK REGISTER

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY

June 30, 2020









































(Item 5) 
 

To:  Board of Library Trustees 

From: Mike Driskell 

Date:  July 21, 2020 

Re:  Makerspace Project Update  

__________________________________________________________________ 

 

Staff and representatives from Williams Architects will provide an update on the 

progress of the makerspace building project at 112 North Belmont Avenue, 

including progress on the bidding and potential changes in the sanitary sewer system 

to accommodate the kitchen grease trap.  



(Item 6) 

1 
 

To:        Board of Library Trustees 

From:    Mike Driskell 

Date:     June 21, 2020  

Re:        LIBRARY STAFFING AND CUSTOMER SERVICE CHANGES DUE   

TO COVID-19 

__________________________________________________________________ 

 

This is an informational update regarding the reopening of the library building to 

the public on June 26, 2020.  

At the June 16, 2020 board meeting, the Board of Library Trustees authorized the 

executive director to reopen the library building to the public with limited hours, 

capacity and services. In anticipation of reopening, library staff have prepared the 

building in accordance with guidelines set by the Center for Disease Control 

(CDC) and the Illinois Department of Public Health (IDPH). We reopened our 

doors to the public on June 26, in conjunction with our region moving to Phase 4 

of the Restore Illinois reopening plan provided by the State of Illinois. 

The following services were previously available or made available on June 26: 

 A limited number of public computers are available, limited to one-hour use 

 Printers and copiers are available 

 The library collections are available to browse, and self-checkout stations 

are available 

 The bookmobile began operation at regularly scheduled stops with hold 

pick-up service only. Browsing the collection on the bookmobile is not 

available 

 Return bins at the main library and offsite locations are open  

 Virtual services and programs continue 

 Phone, chat and email service available during library hours 

Some services are limited to ensure the safety of our customers and staff: 

 No book donations are accepted until further notice 

 Seating is limited throughout the library 

 Studio and conference rooms are not available 

 Programming remains primarily virtual  

 

https://www.ahml.info/services/bookmobile


(Item 6) 

2 
 

Public hours were expanded beyond limited curbside service hours offered prior to 

June 26 but have not been brought back to pre-COVID service hours. The current 

hours are:  

Monday - Friday 9:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.  

(1st hour on Friday reserved for vulnerable audience) 

Saturday 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

Sunday 11:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

Our initial open hours are shorter than pre-closure, anticipating the number of 

customers would be far fewer than a normal day. Hours will be expanded if the 

need grows.  

As of July 17, 11,000 customers have been welcomed into our library building 

since June 26, averaging 550 visitors per day (pre-COVID, 2,000 per day). In 

addition to walk-ins, customers have been using our curbside/drive-up pickup 

option, averaging 240 cars per day (pre-COVID, 200 per day).  

Customers and staff are required to follow safety guidelines in order to be in the 

library building. These include:  

 wearing a mask while in the building. Accommodations are made for those 

unable to wear a mask.  

 practice social distancing 

 follow directional arrows and signage  

 limit their time in the building to one hour (customers only) 

Opening the building during Phase 4 required many modifications to workflow, 

staffing, service hours, furniture and expectations. We are being careful to modify 

or add services, making sure to receive input from staff and managers. We have 

moved or adjusted service points based on staff feedback, modified our Dunton 

entrance/exit pathway, returned to Drive-up Window service and continue to look 

for ways to offer services as safely as possible in this new environment.  

Since entering Phase 4, staff are only paid for hours worked. If staff have been 

called back to work and are unavailable, we have asked them to work with their 

manager and our Human Resources manager to discuss various 

accommodations that may include Leave of Absence or use of vacation/personal 

time. Our supervisors and managers have worked on schedules to accommodate as 



(Item 6) 

3 
 

many staff hours as possible through schedule shifting and reutilization of staff in 

alternate roles.    

Throughout this closure and reopening, our objective has been to serve our 

community as safely and effectively as possible. As we add services, we are doing 

so in a way that is thoughtful and safe. We are quarantining items, providing 

proper personal protection equipment and making sure our workplace and staff are 

adhering to CDC and IDPH guidelines.  

We are also monitoring news and updates from Governor Pritzker, the Illinois 

Department of Health, and CDC. We are ready should we need to modify services 

if our region rolls back to Phase 3. With that in mind, below is our tentative plan 

to transition services and staff expectations for returning to Phase 3. For the most 

part, we would go back to operations as they were in the days before we entered 

Phase 4. We will adjust this plan as needed to align with any internal changes 

and any new state, local, IDPH or CDC guidelines.  

Services and Hours offered:  

 All staff working onsite to fulfill library service operations have access to 

the building. Staff who can fulfill the requirements of their job working 

remotely may opt to do so if equipment is available.    

 The building will continue to be open for staff at 7:00 a.m.  

 Drive-up window in service (move to Curbside Service if daily service count 

indicates need)  

 Virtual services and programs continue 

 Live phone, chat and email service   

 Returns accepted at all locations  

 Materials are checked in daily  

 Holds are processed for Drive-up or Curbside pickup  

 Deliveries are accepted and moved to recipient area  

 Mail is accepted, sorted and delivered  

Closures and cancellations:  

 Building closed to the public   

 Not accepting book donations   

 Senior Center Reading Room closed   

 No bookmobile services  



(Item 6) 

4 
 

 Library delivery services canceled or modified  

Tentative hours:  

Monday-Friday 9:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.   

Saturday 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.    

Sunday 11:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.   

Compensation options for staff in Phase 3 that would be considered and discussed 

with the board include:  
 

1. Full pay for budgeted hours for all staff regardless of working hours.  

2. Partial pay rate (2/3 hourly rate) for all non-worked hours, with worked 

hours paid in full. Worked hours would be defined as work that is 

consistent with their job description. Vacation or personal time may be 

used to offset pay deficiencies.  

3. Pay only for time worked. Worked hours would be defined as work that 

is consistent with their job description. Vacation or personal time may be 

used to offset pay deficiencies.  

4. Furlough non-critical workers who are unable to perform their job duties 

due to the closure. Only staff who are involved in providing library 

services offered during the closure would be paid for hours worked.  

 

We are all hoping that a return to Phase 3 or any rollback in services is not 

necessary. However, it is important for us to have a plan so we can transition 

quickly. We wanted to share this with you now in case changes to hours or services 

are required, options in advance have been presented for consideration.  
 

 

 

 



(Action Item 7) 
 

To:  Board of Library Trustees 

 

From: Mike Driskell and Donna Ekl  

 

Date:  July 21, 2020 

 

Re:  2021 Budget Targets 

 

As discussed at the July 13 Special Board meeting, as in previous years, we are 

providing the budget targets that will be used in the preparation of the 2021 budget 

for the board’s review and approval. Targets are once again divided into categories 

based on who has the responsibility for setting the target: the board, staff, Village of 

Arlington Heights, federal government and the market. 

 

Information received from the Village is preliminary and could change. The 

estimated increase for liability insurance from LIRA is also preliminary. We will 

communicate any changed or missing information to the board for its review and 

approval. 

 

 

 

Suggested motion: The Board of Library Trustees adopts the 2021 Budget 

Targets with updated information to be included as it becomes available. 

 



July 13, 2020

Arlington Heights Memorial Library

BUDGET TARGETS FOR 2021

CY 2017 CY 2018 CY 2019 CY 2020 CY 2021

REVENUE

SET BY BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES
1.  Target for tax levy increase on previous years extended levy 0% 0% 1% 0% 0% a

EXPENDITURES
SET BY FINANCE COMMITTEE
2.  Maximum Operating Budget increase (excludes Property) 3.00% 3.00% 2.50% 5.73% 2.50% b

3.  Maximum increase in salary ranges 2.00% 2.80% 2.80% 1.90% 5.06% c

4.  Increase in Budgeted Personal Services not to exceed 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 6.85% 3.00%

SET BY STAFF
 
5.  Maximum increase for individual budget lines 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% d

SET BY VILLAGE
6.  Increase in medical insurance not to exceed 8% 10% 9.50% 8.00% 5.00% e
     Employee medical insurance - actual through 2020 1,128,200$   1,158,900$   1,268,996$     1,367,928$     1,497,881$     f
     Insurance contingency -$                  -$                  250,000$        250,000$        250,000$        g

7.  Assessment for Accounts Payable processing - actual through 2020 23,690$        24,500$        25,235$          25,992$          129,267$        h

8.  IMRF Rate for Fiscal Year not to exceed - set by VAH 12.34% 13.07% 10.01% 12.64% 12.54% i

SET BY GOVERNMENT
10.  Social Security 6.20% 6.20% 6.20% 6.20% 6.20%

11. Medicare 1.45% 1.45% 1.45% 1.45% 1.45%

SET BY MARKET
14.  Employee Assistance Plan - Actual through 2020 5,405$          5,664$          5,930$            5,836$            6,128$            j
15.  Liability Insurance - Actual through 2020 110,708$      102,149$      108,278$        120,958$        169,341$        k

H:\Budget 2021\Reference Information\2021 Budget Targets



FOOTNOTES

a - Set per Board action following review and recommendation of LRFP
b - This target excludes expenditures in the General Fund's Property area 
[non capitalized fixed assets] as well as all expenditures in the Capital 
Projects Fund.
c - Most Salary ranges in 2021 will have a range increase of .8%. First-
quarter data from the Bureau of Labor Statistics point to a 0.8% cost-of-
living adjustment in 2021. That adjustment would be substantially lower 
than the 1.6% increase in 2020. Salary grades C3 to A1 are building to $15 
minimum wage requirement in 2025, and these grades will experience a 
change of up to 5.06% in 2021. 

d - An increase above this target requires an approved add-on request.
e - Percent increase is a preliminary estimate from HUB June 2020. VAH 
budget ceiling at 5% also.
f - Increase from 2020
g - 2017 transfer $300,000 from AHML's General Fund to the VAH Health 
Insurance fund. Keep contingency liability in future. 2% already included in 
5% health insurance target.
h - 3% before 2021. Service Charge Increase in 2021 once we receive 24% 
of VAH's annual PPRT.
i - Set by VAH
j - 5% increase based on industry trend

k -  As we discussed last November the property marketplace will continue 
to harden as the trend of more severe and frequent catastrophic events 
continues to occur across the US. Throughout the Midwest there have been 
catastrophic storms. In addition to losses, property carriers have instituted 
convective storm modeling to quantify their property exposures. This 
modeling is able to forecast expected severe storms. Due to the modeling, 
all carriers have seen their reinsurance costs increase which in return 
means the carriers have to increase their property rates to the buyer. 
Estimated increase, 40%.

H:\Budget 2021\Reference Information\2021 Budget Targets



(Action Item 8) 
 

To: Board of Library Trustees  

From: Michael Driskell and Donna Ekl 

Date: July 21, 2020 

Re: Review of Annual Financial Report 

 

Each year, the board reviews the annual financial report, which is prepared by the 

library’s auditors. Attached, in draft form, are: 

 

 Auditor’s Statement on Auditing Standards [SAS] 114 letter 

 Auditor’s letter to management 

 Annual financial report including the MD&A 

 

The opinion of the auditor is that our financial statements present fairly, in all 

material respects, the financial position of the library. Anthony Cervini with 

Sikich, LLP of Naperville, IL, will be in attendance to review the documents and 

answer your questions. 

 

 

 

Suggested motion: The Board of Library Trustees accepts the annual financial 

report for the year ended December 31, 2019. 
 



 

 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

 



ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY 
ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 
 

Page(s) 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ........................................................................  1-3 
 
GENERAL PURPOSE EXTERNAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 Basic Financial Statements 
 
  Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
   Statement of Net Position ...................................................................................  4 
 
   Statement of Activities .......................................................................................  5 
 
  Fund Financial Statements 
 
   Governmental Funds 
 
    Balance Sheet ................................................................................................  6 
 
    Reconciliation of Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to  
      the Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position ...................  7 
 
    Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances ........  8 
 
    Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,  
      Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances to the Governmental  
      Activities in the Statement of Activities ......................................................  9 
 
  Notes to Financial Statements .................................................................................  10-26 
 
 Required Supplementary Information 
 
  Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
    Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund ..............................................  27 
  Other Postemployment Benefit Plan  
   Schedule of Changes in the Employer’s Total OPEB Liability 
     and Related Ratios ............................................................................................  28 
  Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 
   Schedule of Employer Contributions .................................................................  29 
   Schedule of the Library’s Proportionate Share  
     of the Net Pension Liability ..............................................................................  30 
  Notes to Required Supplementary Information ......................................................  31 



ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued) 

 

 

 

Page(s) 

 

INDIVIDUAL FUND SCHEDULES 

 

 MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

  Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual 

    General Fund .........................................................................................................  32 

  Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 

    Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

   Capital Projects Fund .........................................................................................  33 

 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 



 

 

1415 West Diehl Road, Suite 400 

Naperville, IL 60563 

630.566.8400 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

 

The Honorable President 

Members of the Board of Trustees 

Arlington Heights Memorial Library 

Arlington Heights, Illinois  

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and the major 

funds of the Arlington Heights Memorial Library (the Library) as of and for the year ended 

December 31, 2019, and the related notes to financial statements, which collectively comprise the 

Library’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 

includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 

and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 

in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 

Library’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the Library’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such 

opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 

overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 

- 1 -



 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinions. 

 

Opinions 

 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 

respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 

remaining fund information of the Arlington Heights Memorial Library, Arlington Heights, Illinois 

as of December 31, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 
Emphasis of Matter 

 

Previously, the Library was reported as a discretely presented component unit of the Village of 

Arlington Heights. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 61, the Library is no longer reported as 

part of the Village reporting entity as it does not meet the criteria for inclusion as a discretely 

presented component unit. 

 

Other Matters 

 

Required Supplementary Information 

 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required 

supplementary information listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic 

financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 

required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part 

of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 

economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 

supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 

States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 

information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 

inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 

basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 

information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 

opinion or provide any assurance. 

 

The Library has omitted Management’s Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles 

generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic 

financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, 

is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 

part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 

economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this 

missing information. 

  

- 2 -



 

 

Other Information 

 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 

collectively comprise the Library’s basic financial statements. The individual fund schedules are 

presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 

statements. The individual fund schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived 

from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 

financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 

audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 

reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 

the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 

procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America. In our opinion, the individual fund schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in 

relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

 

 

 

Naperville, Illinois 

June 25, 2020 

- 3 -



GENERAL PURPOSE EXTERNAL  

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



Governmental

Activities

ASSETS

Cash and investments 13,863,284$    

Receivables (net, where applicable,

  of allowance for uncollectibles)

Property taxes 14,247,733      

Accounts 58,135             

Accrued interest 41,083             

Prepaid expenses 378,609           

Capital assets not being depreciated 647,378           

Capital assets being depreciated

  (net of accumulated depreciation) 8,516,030        

Total assets 37,752,252      

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension related items - OPEB 104,723           

Pension related items - IMRF 1,153,438        

Total deferred outflows of resources 1,258,161        

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 39,010,413      

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 211,066           

Accrued payroll 452,274           

Long-term liabilities 

Due within one year  89,885             

Due in more than one year 4,615,690        

Total liabilities 5,368,915        

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension related items - OPEB 23,989             

Pension related items - IMRF 2,318,952        

Deferred revenue - property taxes  14,247,733      

Total deferred inflows of resources 16,590,674      

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 21,959,589      

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 9,163,408        

Unrestricted 7,887,416        

TOTAL NET POSITION 17,050,824$    

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

December 31, 2019

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
- 4 -



Net (Expense)

Revenue and

Change in

Net Position

Operating Capital

Charges Grants and Grants and Governmental

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS Expenses for Services Contributions Contributions Activities

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Governmental Activities

Culture and recreation 15,066,761$    160,450$        121,617$        1,259,590$     (13,525,104)$      

Total governmental activities 15,066,761      160,450          121,617          1,259,590       (13,525,104)        

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 15,066,761$    160,450$        121,617$        1,259,590$     (13,525,104)        

General Revenues

  Taxes

     Property 13,927,291         

  Investment income 235,359              

  Miscellaneous income 105,473              

        Total 14,268,123         

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 743,019              

NET POSITION, JANUARY 1 16,307,805         

NET POSITION, DECEMBER 31 17,050,824$       

Program Revenues

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 

 STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
- 5 -



Capital Total 

General Projects Governmental

 

Cash and investments 10,168,609$     3,694,675$       13,863,284$     

Receivables 

Property taxes 14,247,733       -                    14,247,733       

Accounts receivable 56,068              2,067                58,135              

Accrued interest receivable 41,083              -                    41,083              

Due from other funds -                    2,000,000         2,000,000         

Prepaid items 378,609            -                    378,609            

TOTAL ASSETS 24,892,102$     5,696,742$       30,588,844$     

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 199,214$          11,852$            211,066$          

Accrued payroll 452,274            -                    452,274            

Due to other funds 2,000,000         -                    2,000,000         

Total liabilities 2,651,488         11,852              2,663,340         

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue - property taxes 14,247,733       -                    14,247,733       

Total deferred inflows of resources 14,247,733       -                    14,247,733       

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 16,899,221       11,852              16,911,073       

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable 

Prepaid items 378,609            -                    378,609            

Assigned

Capital projects -                    5,684,890         5,684,890         

Unassigned 7,614,272                               -   7,614,272         

Total fund balances 7,992,881         5,684,890         13,677,771       

 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS

  OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES 24,892,102$     5,696,742$       30,588,844$     

OF RESOURCES, AND  FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY

December 31, 2019

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

 BALANCE SHEET

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 

ASSETS

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
- 6 -



FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 13,677,771$     

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position 

  are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, 

  therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds 9,163,408         

 

Differences between expected and actual experiences, assumption changes, 

  and net differences between projected and actual earnings  for IMRF are

  recognized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources on

  the statement of net position (1,165,514)       

Differences between expected and actual experiences, assumption changes

  and net difference between projected and actual earnings for the OPEB are

  recognized as deferred outflows and inflows of resources on the statement

  of net position 80,734              

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the 

  current period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds

Compensated absences payable (354,633)          

Net pension liability (3,860,124)       

Total OPEB liability (490,818)          

  

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 17,050,824$     

December 31, 2019

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY

RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
- 7 -



Capital Total 

General Projects Governmental

REVENUES

Property taxes 13,927,291$     -$                  13,927,291$     

Charges for services 160,450            -                    160,450            

Grants 95,987               -                    95,987               

Investment income 125,201            110,158            235,359            

Donations 25,630               -                    25,630               

Miscellaneous income 105,473            -                    105,473            

Total revenues 14,440,032       110,158            14,550,190       

EXPENDITURES 

Current

Culture and recreation

Administration 11,185,241       -                    11,185,241       

Building 581,344            -                    581,344            

Books and materials 1,991,814         -                    1,991,814         

Capital outlay 68,871               80,001               148,872            

Total expenditures 13,827,270       80,001               13,907,271       

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 612,762            30,157               642,919            

FUND BALANCES, JANUARY 1 7,380,119         5,654,733         13,034,852       

FUND BALANCES, DECEMBER 31 7,992,881$       5,684,890$       13,677,771$     

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS

 STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
- 8 -



NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

  TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 642,919$          

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are

  different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures; however, they are

  capitalized and depreciated in the statement of activities

Capital outlay 66,165              

Contributions of capital assets 1,259,590         

Some expenses in the statement of activities (e.g., depreciation) do not require

  the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as

  expenditures in governmental funds (727,491)           

The change in compensated absences payable is shown as an expense on the

  statement of activities (33,557)             

The change in the net pension liability and related deferred outflows and inflows

  of resources for IMRF is reported only in the statement of activities (379,169)           

The change in total OPEB liability, deferred inflows, and deferred outflows

  of resources are not a source or use of financial resources (85,438)             

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 743,019$          

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
- 9 -



 

- 9 - 

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 

 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

December 31, 2019 

 

 

 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

 The financial statements of the Arlington Heights Memorial Library, Arlington Heights, 

Illinois (the Library), have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 

generally accepted in the United States of America, as applied to governmental units 

(hereinafter referred to as generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)). The 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body 

for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more 

significant of the Library’s accounting policies are described below. 

 

 a. Financial Reporting Entity 

 

  The Library is governed by a seven-member Library Board of Trustees that is 

separately elected. The Library Board of Trustees selects management staff and 

directs the affairs of the Library. As required by GAAP, these financial statements 

include all funds of the Library. Management has also considered all potential 

component units. Criteria for including a component unit in the Library’s reporting 

entity principally consist of the potential component unit’s financial interdependency 

and accountability to the Library. Based upon those criteria, there are no potential 

component units to be included in the reporting entity. Additionally, based on the 

same criteria, the Library has been determined not to be a component unit of the 

Village of Arlington Heights, Illinois (the Village). 

 

 b. Fund Accounting 

 

  The accounts of the Library are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund 

is an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. 

Fund accounting segregates funds according to their intended purposes and is used to 

aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and 

contractual provisions. The minimum number of funds is maintained consistent with 

legal and management requirements. 

 

  Funds are classified into the following categories: governmental, proprietary, and 

fiduciary. All of the Library’s funds are governmental funds. 

 

  Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of a government’s general 

activities, including the collection and disbursement of restricted or committed 

monies (special revenue funds), the funds committed, restricted, or assigned for the 

acquisition or construction of capital assets (capital projects funds), the funds 

committed, restricted, or assigned for the servicing of long-term debt (debt service 

- 10 -



ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

 

 

 

- 10 - 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 

 b. Fund Accounting (Continued) 

 

funds), and the management of funds held in trust that can be used for governmental 

services (permanent funds). The General Fund is used to account for all activities of 

the Library not accounted for in some other fund. 

 

 c. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

 

  The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the 

statement of activities) report information on all of the activities of the Library. The 

effect of material interfund activity has been eliminated from these statements. 

Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and 

intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, 

which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. The Library has no 

business-type activities. 

 

  The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 

given function, segment, or program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses 

are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program 

revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or 

directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or 

segment and (2) grants and standard revenues that are restricted to meeting the 

operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and 

other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as 

general revenues. 

 

  Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds. Major individual 

governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial 

statements. 

 

  The Library reports the following major governmental funds: 

 

   The General Fund is the Library’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all 

financial resources of the general government, except those accounted for in 

another fund. 
 
   The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the amounts assigned for future capital 

projects. 

- 11 -



ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

 

 

 

- 11 - 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 

 d. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
 
  The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred. The Library 
recognizes property taxes when they become both measurable and available in the 
period the tax is intended to finance. Grants and similar items are recognized as 
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been 
met.  

 
  Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 

resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. 
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current 
period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The Library 
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of 
the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a fund liability is 
incurred. However, debt service expenditures are recorded only when payment is 
due. 

 
  Property taxes, grants, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all 

considered to be susceptible to accrual and are recognized as revenues of the current 
fiscal period. Fines and miscellaneous revenues are considered to be measurable and 
available only when cash is received by the Library. 

 
  In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues (i.e., 

federal and state grants), the legal and contractual requirements of the numerous 
individual programs are used as guidance. There are, however, essentially two types 
of these revenues. In one, monies must be expended on the specific purpose or 
project before any amounts will be paid to the Library; therefore, revenues are 
recognized based upon the expenditures recorded. In the other, monies are virtually 
unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and are generally revocable only for failure 
to comply with prescribed eligibility requirements, such as equal employment 
opportunity. These resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier 
if they meet the availability criterion. 

 
  The Library reports unavailable/deferred and unearned revenue on its financial 

statements. Unavailable/deferred revenues arise when a potential revenue does not 
meet both the measurable and available or earned criteria for recognition in the 
current period. Unearned revenues arise when resources are received by the Library 
before it has a legal claim to them such as when grant monies are received prior to 
the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both the 
revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the Library has a legal claim to the 
 

- 12 -



ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

 

 

 

- 12 - 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 

 d. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

  (Continued) 

 

resources, the liability or deferred inflow of resources for unavailable/deferred and 

unearned revenue is removed from the financial statements and revenue is 

recognized. 

 

 e. Investments 

 

  Investments with a maturity of less than one year when purchased, non-negotiable 

certificates of deposit and other nonparticipating investments are stated at cost or 

amortized cost. Investments with a maturity greater than one year when purchased 

are stated at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset 

or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at 

the measurement date. 

 

 f. Capital Assets  

 

  Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the 

applicable governmental activities columns in the government-wide financial 

statements. Capital assets are defined by the Library as assets with an initial, 

individual cost in excess of $10,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one 

year.  

 

  Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or 

constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of 

donation.  

 

  The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset 

or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.  

 

  Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are 

constructed. Property, plant, and equipment is depreciated using the straight-line 

method over the following estimated useful lives: 

 

 Years 

  

Buildings and improvements  40 

Equipment 5-10 

 

- 13 -



ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

 

 

 

- 13 - 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
 g. Compensated Absences 
 
  Vested or accumulated vacation leave is reported as an expenditure and a fund 

liability of the governmental fund that will pay it once retirement or separation has 
occurred. Vested or accumulated vacation leave of governmental activities is 
recorded as an expense and liability on the statement of net position as the benefits 
accrue to employees. 

 
 h. Long-Term Obligations 
 
  In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt, and other long-term 

obligations are reported as liabilities.  
 
 i. Prepaid Items 
 
  Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the date of 

this report are recorded as prepaid items. 
 
 j. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, 
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net assets that applies to 
a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense/expenditure) until then. In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial 
position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. 
This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents 
an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be 
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  

 
 k. Fund Balance/Net Position 
 
  In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report nonspendable fund 

balance for amounts that are either not in spendable form or that are legally or 
contractually required to be maintained intact. Restrictions of fund balance are 
reported for amounts constrained by legal restrictions from outside parties for use for 
a specific purpose or are externally imposed by outside entities. Committed fund 
balance is constrained by formal actions of the Library’s Board of Trustees, which is 
considered the Library’s highest level of decision-making authority. Formal actions 
include ordinances approved by the Board of Trustees. Assigned fund balance 
represents amounts constrained by the Library’s intent to use them for a specific 
purpose. The authority to assign fund balance resides with the Board of Trustees. 
Any residual fund balance in the General Fund and any deficit fund balances in any 
other governmental funds are reported as unassigned. 

- 14 -



ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

 

 

 

- 14 - 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
 k. Fund Balance/Net Position (Continued)  
 
  The Library’s flow of funds assumptions prescribes that the funds with the highest 

level of constraint are expended first. If restricted or unrestricted funds are available 
for spending, the restricted funds are spent first. Additionally, if different levels of 
unrestricted funds are available for spending, the Library considers committed funds 
to be expended first, followed by assigned, and then unassigned funds. 

 
  In the government-wide financial statements, restricted net position is legally 

restricted by outside parties for a specific purpose. None of the net position is 
restricted as a result of enabling legislation adopted by the Library. Net investment in 
capital assets is the book value of capital assets less outstanding principal balances of 
debt that was issued to construct the capital assets. 

 
 l. Interfund Transactions 
 
  Interfund transactions are accounted for as revenues or expenditures. Transactions 

that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures initially made from it that 
are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures in the 
reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures in the fund that is reimbursed. 

 
  All other interfund transactions, except interfund services and reimbursements, are 

reported as transfers.  
 
 m. Interfund Receivables/Payables 
 
  Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements 

outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other 
funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” 
(i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances 
between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.” 

 
  If applicable, advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, 

are offset by a fund balance nonspendable account in applicable governmental funds 
to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable 
available financial resources. 

 
 n. Use of Estimates 
 
  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires 

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 

- 15 -



ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

 

 

 

- 15 - 

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 

The Library categorizes fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy 
established by GAAP. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the 
fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical 
assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are 
significant unobservable inputs. The Library held no investments subject to fair value 
measurement at December 31, 2019. 

 
 Permitted Deposits and Investments - Statutes and the Library’s investment policy 

authorize the Library to make deposits/invest in insured commercial banks, savings and 
loan institutions, obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies, insured credit union 
shares, money market mutual funds with portfolios of securities issued or guaranteed by 
the United States Government or agreements to repurchase these same obligations, 
repurchase agreements, short-term commercial paper rated within the three highest 
classifications by at least two standard rating services and The Illinois Funds. 

 
 The Illinois Public Treasurers’ Investment Pool, known as The Illinois Funds, operates as a 

qualified external investment pool in accordance with the criteria established in GASB 
Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants, and thus, 
reports all investments at amortized cost rather than market value. The investment in The 
Illinois Funds by participants is also reported at amortized cost. The Illinois Funds does not 
have any limitations or restrictions on participant withdrawals. The Illinois Treasurer’s 
Office issues a separate financial report for The Illinois Funds which may be obtained by 
contacting the Administrative Office at Illinois Business Center, 400 West Monroe Street, 
Suite 401, Springfield, Illinois 62704. 

 
a. Library Deposits with Financial Institutions 

 
  Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the 

event of a bank failure, the Library’s deposits may not be returned to it. The 
Library’s investment policy requires pledging of collateral for bank balances in 
excess of federal depository insurance.  

 
  The Library’s deposits with financial institutions were covered either by FDIC or 

collateral pledged to the Library, held in the Library’s name. 
 
 b.  Library Investments  
 
  Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair 

value of an investment. It is the policy of the Library to invest its funds in a manner 
which will provide the highest investment return with the maximum security while 
meeting daily cash flow demands of the Library and conforming to all state and local 
statutes governing the investment of public funds, using the “prudent person” 
standard for managing the overall portfolio. The primary objective of the policy is 
safety of principal, liquidity, return on investment, and simplicity of management. 
The investment policy does not limit the maturity lengths of library investments. 

- 16 -



ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

 

 

 

- 16 - 

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
 b.  Library Investments (Continued)  
 

  The Library limits its exposure to credit risk, the risk that the issuer of a debt security 
will not pay its par value upon maturity, by primarily investing in The Illinois Funds. 
The Illinois Funds are rated AAA by Standard and Poor’s. 

 
  Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 

counterparty to the investment, the Library will not be able to recover the value of its 
investments that are in the possession of an outside party. The Library’s investment 
policy does not address custodial credit risk for investments. The Illinois Funds are 
not subject to custodial credit risk. 

 
  Concentration of Credit Risk - The Library places no limit on the amount that may 

be invested in any one issuer, stating only that the Library diversify its investments 
to the best of its ability based on the nature of the funds invested and the cash flow 
needs of those funds.  

 
3. PROPERTY TAXES 
 
 Property taxes for 2019 attach as an enforceable lien on January 1, 2019 on property values 

assessed as of the same date. Taxes are levied by December of the fiscal year (by passage 
of a Tax Levy Ordinance). Tax bills are prepared by the County and issued on or about 
February 1, 2020 and August 1, 2020 and are payable in two installments, on or about 
March 1, 2020 and September 1, 2020. The County collects such taxes and remits them 
periodically. The allowance for uncollectible taxes has been stated at 2% of the tax levy, to 
reflect actual collection experience. Since the 2019 levy is intended to fund the 2020 fiscal 
year, the levy has been recorded as a receivable and deferred inflow of resources. 

 
4. CAPITAL ASSETS  
 
 Capital asset activity for the Library for the year ended December 31, 2019 was as follows: 
 

 Beginning 
Balances 

 
Increases 

 
Decreases 

Ending 
Balances 

     
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES     
 Capital assets not being depreciated     
  Land $ 142,378 $ 450,000 $ - $ 592,378 
  Permanent art 55,000 - - 55,000 

     
   Total capital assets not being depreciated   197,378   450,000   -   647,378 

- 17 -



ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

 

 

 

- 17 - 

4. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)  

 
 Beginning 

Balance  

 

Increases 

 

Decreases 

Ending 

Balance 

     

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

  (Continued)  

    

 Capital assets being depreciated     

  Buildings and improvements $ 17,227,804 $ 858,955 $ - $ 18,086,759 

  Equipment   3,726,204   16,800   -   3,743,004 

     

   Total capital assets being depreciated   20,954,008   875,755   -   21,829,763 

     

 Less accumulated depreciation for     

  Buildings and improvements   10,203,709   594,625   -   10,798,334 

  Equipment   2,382,533 132,866 -   2,515,399 

     

   Total accumulated depreciation   12,586,242   727,491   -   13,313,733 

     

   Total capital assets being depreciated,  

     net 

 

  8,367,766 

 

  148,264 

 

  - 

 

  8,516,030 

     

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES      

  CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $ 8,565,144 $ 598,264 $ - $ 9,163,408 

 

5. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

The Library is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and 

destruction of assets; errors and omissions; natural disasters; and injuries to employees. 

The Library is a member of the Libraries of Illinois Risk Agency (LIRA), which is a 

consortium of 55 charter member libraries that provides risk management services and 

coverages to the pool of member libraries. Premiums have been displayed as expenditures 

in appropriate funds. Medical insurance is through the Village with third-party indemnity 

coverage. Losses have not exceeded coverage for the last three years. 

 

6. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES - GRANTS 

 

 Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment 

by grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may 

constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which 

may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time; although, the Library 

expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.  

- 18 -



ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

 

 

 

- 18 - 

7. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

 
 

Issue 

Balances 

January 1 

 

Increases 

 

Decreases  

Balances 

December 31 

Current 

Portion 

      

Total OPEB liability $ 348,295 $ 142,523 $ - $ 490,818 $ 18,959 

Net pension liability   7,926,473   -   4,066,349   3,860,124   - 

Compensated absences  

  payable 

 

  321,076 

 

  97,772 

 

  64,215 

 

  354,633 

 

  70,926 

      

TOTAL $ 8,595,844 $ 240,295 $ 4,130,564 $ 4,705,575 $ 89,885 

 

8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM  

 

 The Library contributes, through the Village, to the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 

(IMRF), an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system. However, the 

Library’s participation in IMRF is equivalent to a cost sharing multiple-employer pension 

plan since only one actuarial valuation is performed for both the Village and the Library 

combined. All disclosures for an agent plan can be found in the Village’s comprehensive 

annual financial report. 

 

 Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 

 

 Plan Administration 

 

 All employees hired in positions that meet or exceed the prescribed annual hourly standard 

must be enrolled in IMRF as participating members. 
 
 The plan is accounted for on the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 

basis of accounting. Employer and employee contributions are recognized when earned in 
the year that the contributions are required, benefits and refunds are recognized as an 
expense and liability when due and payable. Investments are reported at fair value.  

 
 Benefits Provided 
 
 IMRF provides two tiers of pension benefits. Employees hired prior to January 1, 2011 are 

eligible for Tier 1 benefits. For Tier 1 employees, pension benefits vest after eight years of 
service. Participating members who retire at age 55 (reduced benefits) or after age 60 (full 
benefits) with eight years of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, 
payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1 2/3% of their final rate of earnings, for 
each year of credited service up to 15 years, and 2% for each year thereafter. Employees 
hired on or after January 1, 2011 are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For Tier 2 employees, 
pension benefits vest after ten years of service. Participating members who retire at age 62 
(reduced benefits) or after age 67 (full benefits) with ten years of credited service are 
 

- 19 -



ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

 

 

 

- 19 - 

8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM (Continued) 
 
 Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued) 
 
 Benefits Provided (Continued) 

 
entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 
1 2/3% of their final rate of earnings, for each year of credited service up to 15 years, and 
2% for each year thereafter. IMRF also provides death and disability benefits. These 
benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state statute. 

 
 Contributions 
 
 Participating members are required to contribute 4.50% of their annual salary to IMRF. 

The Village and the Library are required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to 
fund IMRF as specified by statute. The employer contribution rate for the calendar year 
ended 2019 was 10.14% of covered payroll.  

 
 Net Pension Liability 
 
 At December 31, 2019, the Library reported a liability of $3,860,124 for its proportionate 

share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of 
December 31, 2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension 
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Library’s proportion 
of the net pension liability was based on the Library’s actual contribution to the plan for 
the year ended December 31, 2019 relative to the contributions of the Village, actuarially 
determined. At December 31, 2019, the Library’s proportion was 26.15% of the total 
contribution to the plan. 

 
 Actuarial Assumptions 
 
 The Library’s net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2019 and the total 

pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation performed as of the same date using the following actuarial methods and 
assumptions.  

 
Actuarial valuation date December 31, 2019 
  
Actuarial cost method  Entry-age normal 
  
Assumptions  
 Inflation 2.50% 
 Salary increases 3.35% to 14.25% 
 Discount rate 7.25% 
 Cost of living adjustments 3.00% 
  
Asset valuation method  Market 

 

- 20 -



ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

 

 

 

- 20 - 

8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM (Continued) 
 
 Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued) 
 
 Actuarial Assumptions (Continued) 
 
 For nondisabled retirees, an IMRF specific mortality table was used with fully generational 

projection scale MP-2017 (base year 2015). IMRF specific rates were developed from the 
RP-2014 Blue Collar Health Annuitant Mortality Table with adjustments to match current 
IMRF experience. For disabled retirees, an IMRF specific mortality table was used with 
fully generational projection scale MP-2015 (base year 2017). IMRF specific rates were 
developed from the RP-2014 Disabled Retirees Mortality Table applying the same 
adjustment that were applied for nondisabled lives. For active members, an IMRF specific 
mortality table was used with fully generational projection scale MP-2015 (base year 
2017). IMRF specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table 
with adjustments to match current IMRF experience. 

 
 Investment Rate 
 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions will be 
made at the current contribution rate and that the Library contributions will be made at 
rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the 
member rate. Based on those assumptions, the fund’s fiduciary net position was projected 
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.  

 
 Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of  

  Resources 
 

 For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Library recognized pension expense of 
$1,083,232. At December 31, 2019, the Library reported deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to IMRF from the following sources: 

 
 Deferred 

Outflows of 
Deferred 

Inflows of 
 Resources Resources 

   
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 591,516 $ 4,608 
Changes in assumption   561,922   288,372 
Net difference between projected and actual    
  earnings on pension plan investments   -   2,025,972 

   
TOTAL $ 1,153,438 $ 2,318,952 

 

- 21 -



ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

 

 

 

- 21 - 

8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM (Continued) 

 

 Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued) 

 
 Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of  

  Resources (Continued) 
 

 Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 

related to IMRF will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

 

Year Ending   

December 31,   

   

2020  $ (238,970) 

2021    (232,170) 

2022    276,585 

2023    (970,959) 

   

TOTAL  $ (1,165,514) 

 

 Discount Rate Sensitivity 

 

 The following is a sensitivity analysis of the net pension liability (asset) to changes in the 

discount rate. The table below presents the net pension liability (asset) of the Library 

calculated using the discount rate of 7.25% as well as what the Library’s net pension 

liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage 

point lower (6.25%) or 1 percentage point higher (8.25%) than the current rate:  

 

  

1% Decrease 

Current  

Discount Rate 

 

1% Increase 

 (6.25%) (7.25%) (8.25%) 

    

Net pension liability (asset) $ 10,020,890 $ 3,860,123 $ (1,245,843) 

 

9. INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES 

 

 Interfund Receivables/Payables are as follows: 

 

 Due From Due To 

   

General $ 2,000,000 $ - 

Capital Projects   -   2,000,000 

   

TOTAL $ 2,000,000 $ 2,000,000 

- 22 -



ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

 

 

 

- 22 - 

9. INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES (Continued) 
 
 The due to/from other funds in the above table relates to short term operating loans. The 

amounts will be repaid within one year. 
 

10. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
 
 a.  Plan Description 
 
  In addition to providing the pension benefits described, the Library provides 

postemployment health care insurance benefits (OPEB) for its eligible retired 
employees through a single employer defined benefit plan. The benefits, benefit 
levels, employee contributions, and employer contributions are governed by the 
Library and can be amended by the Library through its personnel manual. No assets 
are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement 
No. 75. The plan does not issue a separate report. The activity of the plan is reported 
in the Library’s governmental activities. 

 
 b. Benefits Provided  
 
  The Library provides pre and post-Medicare postemployment healthcare benefits to 

all retirees, their spouses and dependents (enrolled at time of employee’s retirement). 
To be eligible for benefits, the employee must qualify for retirement under the 
Library’s retirement plan. The retirees pay the blended premium. Upon a retiree 
becoming eligible for Medicare, the amount payable under the health plan will be 
reduced by the amount payable under Medicare for those expenses that are covered 
under both. 

 
  All health care benefits are provided through the Library’s health insurance plans. 

The benefit levels are the same as those afforded to active employees. Benefits 
include general inpatient and outpatient medical services; mental, nervous, and 
substance abuse care; vision care; and prescriptions. Upon a retiree reaching 65 years 
of age, Medicare becomes the primary insurer and the Library’s plan becomes 
secondary. 

 
 c. Membership 
 
  At December 31, 2019, membership consisted of: 

 
Inactive employees currently receiving benefit payments   38 4  
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits   - 
Active employees   78 
  
TOTAL   116 

  
Participating employers   1 

- 23 -



ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

 

 

 

- 23 - 

10. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 

 

 d. Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs 

 

  The total OPEB liability at December 31, 2019, was determined using the following 

actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the 

measurement, unless otherwise specified. The total OPEB liability was rolled 

forward by the actuary using updated procedures to December 31, 2019, including 

updating the discount rate at December 31, 2019, as noted on the following page.  

 

Actuarial valuation date December 31, 2018 

  

Measurement date December 31, 2019 

  

Actuarial cost method  Entry-age normal 

  

Inflation 3.00% 

  

Discount rate 2.75% 

  

Healthcare cost trend rates 

 

8.00% Initial 

4.50% Ultimate 

  
Asset valuation method  N/A 
  
Mortality rates RP2014 Blue Collar 

base rates projected 
to 2018 using scale 

MP-2018 
 
 e. Discount Rate 
 
  The discount rate was based on The Bond Buyer 20-Bond GO Index, which is based 

on an average of certain general obligation municipal bonds maturing in 20 years and 
having an average rating equivalent of Moody’s Aa2 and Standard & Poor’s AA.  

- 24 -



ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

 

 

 

- 24 - 

10. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 

 

 f. Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

 

 Total OPEB 

 Liability 

  

BALANCES AT JANUARY 1, 2019 $ 348,295 

  

Changes for the period  

 Service cost   16,755 

 Interest   13,891 

 Changes in assumptions   71,130 

 Differences between expected and actual experience   - 

 Benefit payments   (18,959) 

  

  Net changes   82,817 

  

BALANCES AT DECEMBER 31, 2019 $ 431,112 

 

  There were changes in assumptions related to the discount rate.  

 

 g. Rate Sensitivity 

 

  The following is a sensitivity analysis of total OPEB liability to changes in the 

discount rate and the healthcare cost trend rate. The table below presents the total 

OPEB liability of the Library calculated using the discount rate of 2.75% as well as 

what the Library’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a 

discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (1.75%) or 1 percentage point higher 

(3.75%) than the current rate:  

 

  

1% Decrease 

Current  

Discount Rate 

 

1% Increase 

 (1.75%) (2.75%) (3.75%) 

    

Total OPEB liability $ 486,047 $ 431,112 $ 385,440 

 

 

- 25 -



ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

 

 

 

- 25 - 

10. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
 g. Rate Sensitivity (Continued) 
 
  The table below presents the total OPEB liability of the Library calculated using the 

healthcare rate of 8% as well as what the Library’s total OPEB liability would be if it 
were calculated using a healthcare rate that is 1 percentage point lower (7%) or 1 
percentage point higher (9%) than the current rate:  

 
  

1% Decrease 
Current  

Healthcare Rate 
 

1% Increase 
 (7%) (8%) (9%) 
    

Total OPEB liability $ 378,942 $ 431,112 $ 494,876 
 
 h. OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of  

  Resources Related to OPEB 
 
  For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Library recognized OPEB expense of 

$85,438. At December 31, 2019, the Library reported deferred outflows and deferred 
inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 

 
 Deferred 

Outflows of 
Deferred 

Inflows of 
 Resources Resources 
   

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 43,714 $ - 
Changes in assumption   61,009   23,989 
 
TOTAL 

 
$ 104,723 

 
$ 23,989 

 
  Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 

resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 
 

Fiscal  
Year Ending 

  

December 31,   

   

2020  $ 14,045 
2021    14,045 
2022    14,045 
2023    14,045 
2024    14,045 
Thereafter    10,509 

   
TOTAL  $ 80,734 

 

- 26 -



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Original and

Final Budget Actual

REVENUES 

Taxes

Property taxes 14,249,157$      13,927,291$      

Grants 61,063               95,987               

Charges for services

Fines 204,993             160,450             

Investment income 37,120               125,201             

Donations 5,000                 25,630               

Miscellaneous income 73,565               105,473             

Total revenues 14,630,898        14,440,032        

EXPENDITURES

Culture and recreation

Administration 12,032,895        11,185,241        

Building 584,843             581,344             

 Book and library materials 2,201,246          1,991,814          

Capital outlay 91,255               68,871               

Total expenditures 14,910,239        13,827,270        

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (279,341)$         612,762             

FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 7,380,119          

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 7,992,881$        

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS

(See independent auditor's report.)
- 27 -



MEASUREMENT DATE DECEMBER 31, 2018 2019

TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY 

Service cost 9,231$         16,755$           

Interest 10,210         13,891             

Changes in assumptions (16,812)        71,130             

Differences between expected and actual experience 53,226         -                  

Benefit payments (14,604)        (18,959)           

Net change in total OPEB liability 41,251         82,817             

Total OPEB liability - beginning 307,044       348,295           

TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY - ENDING 348,295$     431,112$         

Covered payroll 4,705,766$  4,846,939$      

Employer's total OPEB liability

  as a percentage of covered payroll 7.40% 8.89%

There was a change in assumptions related to the discount rate in 2019.

Ultimately, this schedule should present information for the last ten years. However, until ten

years of information can be compiled, information will be presented for as many years as is

available.

Last Two Fiscal Year

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement

No. 75.

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE EMPLOYER'S  

TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

(See independent auditor's report.)
- 28 -



MEASUREMENT DATE DECEMBER 31, 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Actuarially determined contribution 3,159,698$    3,257,572$    3,170,250$    876,141$       694,837$       

Contributions in relation to the actuarially 

  determined contribution 3,168,474      3,257,572      3,170,250      877,582         704,063         

CONTRIBUTION DEFICIENCY (EXCESS) (8,776)$          -$               -$               (1,441)$          (9,226)$          

Covered payroll 24,380,386$  24,924,034$  25,690,842$  6,887,899$    6,941,427$    

Contributions as a percentage of 13.00% 13.07% 12.34% 12.74% 10.14%

  covered payroll

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information

Beginning December 31, 2018, the information above is presented for the Library only. Prior years include Village information. 

The information presented was determined as part of the actuarial valuations as of January 1 of the prior fiscal year. Additional

information as of the latest actuarial valuation presented is as follows: the actuarial cost method was entry-age normal; the amortization

method was level percent of pay, closed, and the amortization period was 24 years; the asset valuation method was five-year smoothed

market; and the significant actuarial assumptions were an investment rate of return at 7.50% annually, projected salary increases

assumption of 3.35% to 14.25% compounded annually and postretirement benefit increases of 3.25% compounded annually.

Ultimately, this schedule should present information for the last ten years. However, until ten years of information can be compiled,

information will be presented for as many years as is available.

Last Five Fiscal Years

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

(See independent auditor's report.)
- 29 -



MEASUREMENT DATE DECEMBER 31, 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Employer's proportion of net pension liability 25.56% 25.56% 25.56% 25.56% 25.56%

Employer's proportionate share of net pension liability 5,821,779  6,092,299  1,299,308    7,926,473  3,860,124$    

Employer's covered payroll 6,231,627  6,370,583  6,566,068    6,887,899  6,941,427      

Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability

  as a percentage of its covered payroll 93.42% 95.63% 19.79% 115.08% 55.61%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total

  pension liability 86.40% 86.35% 97.10% 83.82% 54.35%

Ultimately, this schedule should present information for the last ten years. However, until ten years of information can be compiled, information will

be presented for as many years as is available.

SCHEDULE OF THE LIBRARY'S PROPORTIONATE

ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS

Prior to 2019, the Library was presented as a component unit of the Village. Beginning January 1, 2019, IMRF is presented as a cost-sharing plan

with the Village. Information above for 2015 through 2018 is estimated based on the allocation used in 2019. 

Last Five Fiscal Years

(See independent auditor's report.)
- 30 -



 

- 27 - 

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS 

 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

 

December 31, 2019 

 

 

 

BUDGETS 

 

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP. The budget is prepared for the General 

Fund, and Capital Projects Fund by function and activity, and includes information on the past 

year, current year estimates, and requested appropriations for the next fiscal year. The proposed 

budget is presented to the Library Board of Trustees for review. This governing body holds 

public meetings and may add to, subtract from, or change appropriations. The budget may be 

amended by the governing body. State statutes and local ordinances require that the budget be 

approved before the beginning of the fiscal year. 

 

Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level. During the year, 

no supplementary appropriations were necessary. 

- 31 -



INDIVIDUAL FUND SCHEDULES 



MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 



SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Original and 

Final Budget Actual

EXPENDITURES

Administration

Salaries 8,017,297$        7,628,193$        

Employee benefits 1,372,032          1,281,361          

IMRF 799,315             704,063             

Insurance - medical/life 18,150               12,178               

Social Security and Medicare 611,149             565,847             

Other employee benefits 44,350               34,192               

Professional technical services 247,859             219,057             

Office supplies 38,165               33,395               

Contractual services 884,578             706,955             

Total administration 12,032,895        11,185,241        

Building

Utilities 16,472               19,310               

Maintenance 451,763             461,864             

Equipment rental 2,280                 2,246                 

Tools and equipment 55,163               44,720               

Other property services 59,165               53,204               

Total building 584,843             581,344             

Books and Library Materials

Library supplies 1,920,661          1,792,546          

Other supplies 280,585             199,268             

Total books and library materials 2,201,246          1,991,814          

Capital outlay 91,255               68,871               

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 14,910,239$      13,827,270$      

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS

(See independent auditor's report.)
- 32 -



Original and 

Final Budget Actual

REVENUES 

Investment income 15,000$             110,158$           

Total revenues 15,000               110,158             

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay 157,090             80,001               

Total expenditures 157,090             80,001               

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (142,090)$         30,157               

FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 5,654,733          

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 5,684,890$        

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, ILLINOIS

(See independent auditor's report.)
- 33 -





































(Item 9) 
 

 

To:  Board of Library Trustees 

 

From: Mike Driskell and Donna Ekl  

 

Date:  July 21, 2020 

 

Re:  Review of 2019 Budget versus actual results 

 

Staff will provide a review of the final 2019 actual results, noting significant 

variances from the 2019 budget. 

 

The following schedules are attached to this memo: 

 

1. 2019 Summary of Financial Activity 

2. 2019 Year-end comparison of budget versus actual for all library expenditure 

accounts 

3. 2019 Summary of expenditures for capital projects 

4. 2019 Final Revenue Reports and Detail Budget Reports – 100% of year 

lapsed 

















Page 1 of 25 
 

 

Executive Director’s Report 

June 2020 

 

What’s New @ AHML 
  

First Virtual Artist in Residence Kicks Off 

Magician and illusionist Jeanette Andrews joins the library as our third artist in residence 

and first to offer a slate of virtual experiences exploring her practice. Jeanette began 

practicing magic at age 7 and in her 25-year career has presented for The Smithsonian's 

Cooper Hewitt, the International Museum of Surgical Science, and the Museum of 

Contemporary Art Chicago. She has staged hundreds of sold-out performances for 

Fortune 500 companies, theaters and universities across the United States. Her work 

explores how illusions construct reality. To design her first library residency, Jeanette 

worked with Programs and Exhibits Manager Jennifer Czajka and Specialist Vesryn Grey 

and Communications and Marketing Editorial Supervisor April Harder to create 

programs and prepare blog posts, social media content and more. Jeanette selected four 

themes: Magic & Science, Magic & Art, Magic & Design and Magic & Nature. 

Together with Graphic Designer Stephanie Battista, Jeanette produced a video to 

introduce herself and the residency. Technology and Solution Specialist Ken Pederson 

worked with the planning team to tie everything together in a custom webpage that 

launched July 1 – the same day as Jeanette’s Instagram takeover. Throughout July, the 

community will be treated to a live performance, a workshop and two Meet the Artist 

virtual “Studio Visits”. Charting new territory for the library, Instagram Live Coffee 

Chats will see Jeanette in conversation with experts in broad fields from art to 

neuroscience. Full details at ahml.info/residency 

      

 

 

http://www.ahml.info/residency


Page 2 of 25 
 

American Ancestors Database Remote Access 

Digital Services Librarian Bill Pardue worked with a representative from American 

Ancestors to make the genealogy database available via remote access while the COVID-

19 crisis continues. Ancestry Library Edition has also extended remote access through 

July 31. This is in addition to the numerous other databases that have adjusted their 

access model to allow for use outside of the building. 

 

Continuing Education Units from the Library 

Digital Services Librarian Bill Pardue created a clearinghouse page that lists all of the 

courses that customers can earn Continuing Education Units (CEUs), Professional 

Development Units (PDUs), certification training and test prep through the library 

resources Gale Courses, Udemy, Testing & Education Reference Center and Tutor.com. 

This will come in handy for customers looking for convenient training. 

 

Diversity and Inclusion 

Connecting with Local Students 
Youth Services Outreach staff collaborated with Des Plaines, Elk Grove Village and 

Mount Prospect libraries to virtually visit School District 59 summer school classes. 

Visits included booktalks, reading a story together on hoopla and promoting each 

library’s summer reading programs. The library also contributed to School District 21’s 

food distribution program. Arlington Heights Memorial Library provided bookmobile 

activity sheets and summer reading promotion for the families participating in the food 

distribution program at schools we serve in that district, Poe Elementary School and 

Riley Elementary School.  

School District 25 Craft Kits 
Youth Services staff assembled 1300 

craft kits to contribute to District 25’s 

weekly food distribution at Thomas 

Middle School on June 10. Each bag 

included supplies to make a 'cone-

and-ice-cream game,' a twist on the 

'cup-and-ball game.' The kits also 

included a reading log for this year's 

Summer Reading Challenge. This was 

the library’s second time contributing 

to the food distribution bags. 

 

file:///C:/Users/sdistel/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/7SJRZH29/clearinghouse%20page


Page 3 of 25 
 

ESL Virtual Movie Discussion 

There were 32 ESL programs with 227 participants in the month of June, including the 

return of Ingles para Hispanohablantes (English for Spanish Speakers) that included a 

movie discussion for the first time. Students viewed the coming-of-age movie Abe at 

home, and then shared their reviews. Staff are seeing gains in students’ understanding of 

grammar and vocabulary.  

ESL Virtual Book Discussion 

Nonfiction as a book discussion choice seems to be a big hit, as ESL students enjoyed 

discussing Breaking Through by Francisco Jimenez. Conversing over Zoom has allowed 

ESL students to continue conversing in a learning environment. 

 

Serving our Community during COVID-19  

 
Teamwork Makes the Dream Work! 

Illinois Phase 4 led to a quick turnaround from curbside services to an open building. 

With an extraordinary amount of staff help, we were able to come up with creative ways 

to provide service and materials to our customers both inside and outside of the building 

while still managing all our additional increased daily tasks.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

This would not have been possible, were it not for staff from all departments of the 

library collaborating to make this a success. Thank you to everyone who helped out. All 

the hard work and library-wide support was greatly appreciated! 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 4 of 25 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Curbside Pickup 

Curbside was extremely busy in June with 6,255 cars coming through to pick up holds. In 

comparison, June 2019 saw 6,187 cars at drive up while being open the full range of 

hours/days. On the busiest day, 543 cars stopped by in the six hours we were open, which 

averages to 91 cars per hour!   

 

Magazine Mania! 

Collection Services Staff in Collection Services worked through shipments received 

while the library was closed to get items from the workroom to our shelves. Acquisitions 

Assistant Barb Weber added over 2,150 magazine issues for our customers! 

        
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 5 of 25 
 

So Many Books, So Little Time 

By the end of June, we had fulfilled over 11,000 holds, which is a huge accomplishment, 

because we started with 13,000 outstanding holds at the beginning of the month. Staff 

also checked in almost 41,000 items, most of these in the last two weeks of June. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Home Delivery Service Resumes 

Customers were thrilled when library 

delivery services resumed on June 16 

with contactless deliveries. Thirty-

one deliveries were made in June, 

about 25% of normal deliveries. 

Senior and Accessible Services 

Assistant Renee Witt returns from a 

home delivery route.  

 

 

 

 



Page 6 of 25 
 

Senior Phone-In Programs 

For many of our senior customers with visual or cognitive impairments who wanted to 

participate in our phone-in story times, dialing the phone and entering a meeting ID each 

week was a challenge. With the new Zoom call-out feature, we now call the customer to 

join us. Since adding this feature, our regular participation has doubled. Our Story 

Discussion participants share regularly how much this program means to them: 

 “I have been enjoying weekly phone-in story discussions.”  

 “Thank you for bringing me out of isolation. You’re preventing me from going 

brain dead.” Other participants responded: “We all agree. Especially as we have to 

stay put in our rooms and homes.” 

 “Thank you. It was a lot of fun.” “It was an excellent discussion.” 

 “You’ve given me a completely different viewpoint of this author. Now I want to 

read more by her [Maeve Binchy short story].” 

 

Bookmobile Out and About 

Bookmobile service restarted in June! Although the bookmobile was not accepting 

returns, it become a hold pick-up location in the community. Customers can pick up their 

holds closer to home and avoid the drive across town.  

Book Drops Back in Business! 

Also in June, the book drops at Camelot and Frontier parks opened back up. Bookmobile 

staff resumed the pre-closure schedule with Monday, Wednesday and Friday pick-ups. 

Little Free Libraries 

We continue deliveries to the Little Free Libraries throughout Arlington Heights. This 

will be a monthly addition to bookmobile deliveries. In June, we stocked 20 Little Free 

Libraries with 330 books generously donated by the Friends of the Library.  

 

Booklists 

Info Service Advisors created Booklists on the Readers’ Services page so that customers 

can access these recommended items from home. The lists feature print, eAudio and 

eBooks.  June lists include: June Favorite Things, Riveting Nonfiction Reads, and Lift 

Off. 

 

Hot Picks are Flying Off the Shelves 

Collection Supervisor Violet Jaffe and Collection Specialists Candy Rossin and Cyndi 

Hamann made sure Hot Picks and the New & Popular collection was well stocked by the 

library’s reopening. Eighty-seven percent of the Hot Picks collection was checked out 

within the first week of reopening.   

https://www.ahml.info/list/june-favorite-things
https://www.ahml.info/list/riveting-nonfiction-reads
https://www.ahml.info/list/lift
https://www.ahml.info/list/lift


Page 7 of 25 
 

Virtual Animal Magic Show 

On Saturday, June 6, magician Jaime Aponte amazed a virtual audience of 130 with 

sleight of hand, illusions and mind-boggling magic tricks. Customers marveled at magic 

tricks using live animals, like a boa constrictor appearing out of nowhere, silks 

transforming into doves and pulling a rabbit out of a hat. Entire families joined in on the 

fun and were amazed at magician Jaime’s show, exclaiming “yay!” and “wow” in the 

chat box during the performance. 

       

 

Tarot 101 Returns  

On Monday, June 22, Programs and Exhibits Specialist Vesryn Grey welcomed 39 adults 

to a successful second session of Tarot 101, presented by experienced Reader Clark 

Cutchin. The program was first offered in February and had a lengthy wait list, so all 

customers unable to attend then were notified of the new virtual date. Attendees 

expressed that they enjoyed the show, and that Clark was very personable, fun and 

informative.  

Beatlemania with Professor Moptop 

Gregory Alexander, also known as WXRT’s Professor Moptop, returned to present his 

first virtual event with the library. He worked with Programs and Exhibits Specialist 

Vesryn Grey, with help from Digital Services staff, to modify his popular Beatlemania 

presentation for Zoom. Eighty-two Beatles fans tuned in on Friday, June 19 for the part 

pre-recorded and part-live event. The presentation included photos, music clips and 

videos; including rare footage.  

 

 

 



Page 8 of 25 
 

Dann & Raymond See Highest Virtual Attendance 

For the first time, Dann & Raymond’s Movie Club is continuing into the summer 

months: a longtime request from regular attendees and fans of the film expert duo. 

Extending the series has paid off with 120 attending Greatest Screen Villains on 

Thursday, June 11. This is the highest attendance at a live Zoom program to date. 

Programs and Exhibits Specialist Megan Young has continued to lead production and 

make ongoing improvements to the program quality since Dann & Raymond launched 

their live virtual shows with the library. 

2020 Summer Reading Challenge 

Launched on June 15, the Summer Reading Challenge is 100% accessible online through 

Beanstack for kids, tweens, teens and their families. Youth are challenged to read 500 

minutes this summer to complete the program and receive special prizes or activity ideas 

for every 100 minutes they log. Youth can further challenge themselves to read up to 

1000 minutes and earn additional chances at a grand prize, which consist of gift 

certificates for local restaurants and businesses to continue to support our community 

during this time.  

In response to COVID-19, staff promoted the program 

in virtual classrooms and via social media. The library 

mailed a reading log with information on the program 

to Arlington Heights’ homes. Seven hundred and 

thirty-five local readers signed up for the Summer 

Reading Challenge during the last two weeks of June. 

Hub Instagram  

The Hub’s Instagram was tagged in a story by a teen 

participating in the Summer Reading Challenge. Only 

2 days after the program was launched, this voracious 

reader completed 300 minutes of reading and earned 

three virtual prizes along the way! 

 

 

 

https://www.instagram.com/p/CBg-r4xAfWQ/


Page 9 of 25 
 

Library Awarded “Grow with Google” Grant 
Digital Services Manager Jack Bower and Business Services Advisor Diane Malik 

applied and were approved for the Libraries Lead with Digital Skills grant through the 

American Library Association (ALA) and Grow with Google. The initiative awards 

public libraries $2,000 to provide virtual programming, outreach and education to address 

the digital skills gaps of job seekers, entrepreneurs and small businesses. Arlington 

Heights Memorial Library was selected to participate, utilizing a suite of Google tools 

geared towards empowering small businesses in their digital endeavors. Programs will 

take place this summer. 

3D Printing More PPE 

Makerspace Branch Assistant Manager Chris Krueger has printed 115 face shields, to 

date, for donation to The Moorings of Arlington Heights. Eighty-three face shields were 

produced for library staff and distributed to the Security, Maintenance, Youth Services, 

Digital Services and ESL departments. The library also donated an additional 12 mask 

strap extenders to nurses working in Arlington Heights. 

 

The Director of Nursing at The Moorings of Arlington Heights, dropped off a card with 

the following note: “To our good friends at the Arlington Heights Memorial 

Library. Thank you so much for the generous donation of face shields. In this 

unprecedented time, I can’t think of a better gift to receive. The fact that they are hand 

made only makes it more special. Moorings residents and our staff are safer because 

of you! 

 

  

 

  
 

 

 

 

https://www.dailyherald.com/submitted/20200702/arlington-heights-memorial-library-receives-funding-to-provide-digital-skills-training
https://www.dailyherald.com/submitted/20200702/arlington-heights-memorial-library-receives-funding-to-provide-digital-skills-training


Page 10 of 25 
 

New Adult Reading Program: Page Turners 

Info Services Advisor Barb Weiner and Info Services Librarian Becky Thornton 

developed a new reading program for adults. Page Turners replaces the Summer Reading 

Program for adults, as an extended reading program. The program aims to provide a 

structured leisure activity and motivation for people during this challenging time, by 

offering activity lists incorporating reading and library-related activities. It soft-launched 

June 15, and will run through November with a year-end wrap up. Page Turners has been 

enthusiastically received, with 145 adult registrations within two weeks. 

 

 

Anti-Racism Reading Lists and Beyond 

Led by Teen Services Supervisor Alice Son, library staff across departments compiled a 

new Anti-Racism Resources page that launched to the public on Friday, June 5. Youth 

Services staff developed recommended reading and viewing lists by age, Kids through 

Teens, as well as resources just for parents. Info Services staff contributing reading and 

recommended viewing lists to aid community members’ understanding of current events 

and the history of racism in America. Collection Services staff, who build our diverse 

collections year-round, shared ant-racist reading lists built in Cloud Library. The page, 

ahml.info/antiracism, sees ongoing promotion and placement through a web banner and 

emails.  

 

 

June Book Discussions 

We hosted four virtual book discussions in the month of June, with mystery, science 

fiction and fiction selections. A total of 26 attendees enjoyed the opportunity to connect 

online and talk with other readers. 

http://www.ahml.info/antiracism


Page 11 of 25 
 

Illinois Servitude and Emancipation Records Program 
Genealogy presenter Anita Boyd delved into early Illinois history with a series of case 

studies highlighting a wealth of genealogical information for anyone researching Free 

People of Color. On Monday, June 29, twenty-two attendees expressed their appreciation 

and enthusiasm for the presentation. The virtual nature of this program allowed us to 

share this important and unique information with a wider audience, including out-of-state 

participants. 

An Evening with Charlie Donlea  

Programs and Exhibits Specialist Megan Young collaborated with Info Service Advisors 

Jon Freier and Neal Parker to produce this virtual author event with mystery writer 

Charlie Donlea. Forty-six attended the June 25 event to connect with Charlie, who spoke 

about his journey to become a writer (not reading a book until college) and shared 

answers to a large variety of questions driven by the audience. The audience expressed 

their appreciation for the quality of the program. Customers who missed the event can 

find a link to an unpublished YouTube video in the original event listing. 

 

 

COVID-19 Story Project Growing 

June marked the third month of the ongoing COVID-19 community stories project. On 

June 20, the first day of summer, we shared a renewed invitation to contribute stories via 

social media posts. The posts on Facebook, Instagram and Twitter resulted in 11 new 

submissions (of 35 total submissions collected to date). Two notable new submissions: 

 COVID-19 helped me start my own business 

“A global pandemic, economic uncertainty, physical anxiety. The drawbacks and 

setbacks caused by CoVid 19 are vast and plentiful, but hiding beneath the surface are 

some positive outcomes of this experience. While forced to shelter in place, I wanted 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=yJm2ywS6AUU&list=PLe4GUSJb4V7931_x_UoYno7Sf7lYlou_V&index=6&t=12s


Page 12 of 25 
 

to think of a way to help the many families experiencing the same stress and anxiety 

that I was. So I had the idea to start my own virtual yoga studio, Hop Along Yogi Kids 

Yoga and brought movement and mindfulness to many kids and families working 

through this difficult time.” - Submitted by Laura K. 

 Stay Home with Suhani 

“Suhani Parekh (now a second grader at Patton Elementary) started a podcast to 

share all she was learning during quarantine. She currently has 4 episodes on topics 

ranging from her transition to virtual learning, her favorite TV show on Disney Junior 

that features an Indian lead, her first-grade teacher's experience during quarantine 

and more. You can subscribe to her podcast on YouTube...” - Submitted by Tina S. on 

behalf of Suhani P. (Age 7) 

  

 

LibChat Transition and Training 

Library staff transitioned to LibChat, the instant messaging chat service replacing 

OCLC’s discontinued QuestionPoint, on June 24. Digital Services Librarian Bill Pardue 

provided a series of eight LibChat training sessions to acclimate all Info Services staff 

and supervisors to the new platform. Bill assisted in the transition, working with IT to 

update the chat intake form on the library site and updating forms in related research 

tools that host it (Ebsco and Proquest products). The switchover occurred during what 

was, by far, the busiest month ever for chat transactions with library customers (1518 

chats, a 229% increase over June 2019).   

Here are some of the comments from the chat surveys completed this month: 

 Easy to use and people are nice. 

 Bill has answered other queries for me and he's outstanding. Very thorough and 

easy to understand answers. The library is lucky to have him! He's the perfect 

ambassador for the library. 

 Keep chat available indefinitely. 

 Immediate response with answer to my question! 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=xI-wt8ro61s%20%20https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=gUH-S8jp9c4


Page 13 of 25 
 

Virtual Resource Usage 
 

Top ten visited web pages 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

May 2020:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

June 2020: 



Page 14 of 25 
 

Social Media Engagement 

 January February March April May June 

Facebook       

Posts 25 22 56 60 47 41 

Fans* 5067 5113 5217 5291 5376 5436 

Engagement 1164 1723 3531 3642 2725 3148 

Reactions 1014 1505 2696 3001 2419 2755 

Comments 92 128 347 389 180 211 

Shares 58 90 488 252 126 182 

       

Twitter       

Tweets 65 51 111 139 148 143 

Followers* 4313 4324 4362 4388 4404 4410 

Tweet impressions (in thousands) 75400 59900 116,000 120,000 127000 100000 

Engagement 247 203 534 394 399 387 

Likes 181 164 386 294 348 300 

Retweets 65 33 134 92 56 79 

Mentions* 57 76 74 77 61 66 

Profile visits** 937 819 2040 2060 1240 755 

       

Instagram       

Posts* n/a n/a 859 875 898 922 

Followers* 1767 1802 1852 1904 1947 2006 

Impressions* n/a 11889 25878 24608 19,188 21052 

Average Reach n/a 286 485 451 435 459 

       

Constant Contact       

Campaigns 20 19 22 27 26 27 

Sends 46572 44518 127872 85980 43,351 110,385 

Opens 10681 12536 57487 30772 12245 37071 

Clicks 498 925 2500 2262 1169 2196 

Open rate (percentage) 24% 28% 45% 36% 28% 34% 

Click rate growth over previous 30 days 2% 4% 17% 3% 3% -4% 

open rate vs. industry average 6% 10% 27% 11% 6% 12% 

Total contacts* 31770 31790 32650 32957 33157 33594 

Unsubscribed in last 30 days 30 15 171 98 19 130 

New contacts in the last 30 days 3 25 1006 446 184 436 

       



Page 15 of 25 
 

LinkedIn       

Followers* 655 657 659 660 672 684 

Posts 7 1 5 1 1 8 

Impressions 2335 308 839 620 235 738 

       

YouTube       

Subscribers* 397 402 456 514 585 603 

Videos added 0 3 6 23 34 33 

Views 1601 1821 2,875 5102 5053 3202 

Watch time hours 55.6 63.8 83.3 452.2 437 292.7 

       

Videos by playlist/age added through 3/20-6/30/20     

Adult Youth      

32 73      

       

Playlist Videos       

Creative Aging – Art with Alayne 4      

Board meetings 5      

Top Shelf book recommendations 7      

Adult programs 14      

Tutorials 2      

AHML Storytimes 54      

Tweens and Teens + Tween Arts & 
Craft 18      

Summer Reading Challenge 1      

 
 

*Cumulative 
**New metrics added 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 16 of 25 
 

eResource Usage 

 

eLibrary 2020 Jan-20 
Feb-
20 

Mar-
20 

Apr-
20 

May-
20 

Jun-
20 

Total 

Total eBook checkouts 6,759 5,915 8,308 10,969 11,785 11,375 55,111 

Total eAudio checkouts 3,237 2,915 3,377 4,011 4,415 4,338 22,293 

 

Month at a Glance: 

 

 Due to the COVID-19 library closure, overall circulation is down 60.9% for the month. However, electronic 
checkouts are up 87.9% for the month, with 35,247 total echeckouts. These echeckouts represent 52.2% of 
all checkouts in June.  

  



Page 17 of 25 
 

What Are We Watching? What Are We Learning? 

 



Page 18 of 25 
 

 

 

MOST POPULAR COURSES/eCONTENT IN JUNE 2020 

RBdigital Magazines 

 The Economist 

 The New Yorker 

 Us Weekly 

 The Week Magazine 

 OK! Magazine 

 In Touch Weekly 

 HELLO! magazine 

 AppleMagazine 

 Newsweek 

 HGTV Magazine 

PressReader (Magazines & Newspapers) 

 Chicago Tribune 



Page 19 of 25 
 

 Chicago Sun-Times 

 Chicago Tribune (Sunday) 

 Los Angeles Times 

 New York Post 

 El País (1ª Edición) 

 El Colombiano 

 The Washington Times Daily 

 Chicago Sun-Times (Sunday) 

 El Espectador 

Kanopy 

 The Farewell 

 Delicacy 

 Midsommar 

 The Aztecs 

 The October 1917 Revolution 

 I Am Big Bird 

 A Chinese Farm Wife 

 The Lighthouse 

 Les Vampires 

 Magnus 

 hoopla--Audiobooks 

 So You Want to Talk about Race 

 The Ballad of Songbirds and Snakes 

 Stamped from the Beginning 

 Harry Potter and the Sorcerer's Stone 

 Summary of White Fragility: Why It's so Hard for White People to Talk About Racism by Robin J. DiAng 

 Me and White Supremacy 

 The Alchemist 

 The Good Egg 

 If I Were You 

 Autopsy of a Boring Wife 

 hoopla--Comics 

 Minecraft: Stories from the Overworld 

 Avatar: The Last Airbender: The Promise Part 1 

 Big Nate: From the Top 

 Avatar: The Last Airbender: The Search 

 Avatar: The Last Airbender: The Promise Part 3 

 Star Wars: Target Vader 

 Big Nate: Blow the Roof Off! 



Page 20 of 25 
 

 Avatar: The Last Airbender: The Search Part 2 

 Big Nate Makes the Grade 

 Avatar: The Last Airbender: The Promise Part 2  

hoopla--eBooks 

 The New Jim Crow 

 Me and White Supremacy 

 The Bad Seed 

 If I Were You 

 Vegetables in Underwear 

 Wrecking Ball 

 Pete the Cat and the Supercool Science Fair 

 Pete the Cat and the Perfect Pizza Party 

 Unicorn Day 

 Pete the Cat and the Bad Banana 

 hoopla--Movies 

 Dragons Love Tacos 2: The Sequel 

 Hope Springs 

 Abe 

 The Pigeon Finds A Hot Dog! 

 Dragons Love Tacos 

 Agatha and The Truth of Murder 

 Driveways 

 Burnt 

 Forever 

 Batman Be-Leaguered 

hoopla--Music 

 80s Mixtape 

 The Greatest Showman (Original Motion Picture Soundtrack) 

 Hamilton (Original Broadway Cast Recording) 

 Descendants 3 

 Moana (Original Motion Picture Soundtrack/Deluxe Edition) 

 KIDZ BOP Party Playlist! 

 Lover 

 Chromatica 

 Descendants 

 2020 GRAMMY® Nominees 

 hoopla--Television 

 PAW Patrol - Season 8    Sea Patrol: Pups Save a Shark/Sea Patrol: Pups Save the Pier 



Page 21 of 25 
 

 Cranford: Return to Cranford - Season 2    Episode 2 

 Loud House - Season 1    Left in the Dark/Get the Message 

 PAW Patrol - Season 8    Pups Save A Sleepwalking Bear/Pups Save Dude Ranch Danny 

 PAW Patrol - Season 8    Pups Save a Space Rock/Pups Save a Good Mayor 

 Inspector Lewis 2    And the Moonbeams Kiss the Sea 

 Inspector Lewis - Season 1    Whom the Gods Would Destroy 

 Alienist - Season 1    Ascension 

 Alienist - Season 1    Requiem 

 Alienist - Season 1    Many Sainted Men 

 Gale Courses 

 Certificate in Music Therapy and Sound Healing 

 Discover Sign Language II 

 Keyboarding 

 Medical Terminology: A Word Association Approach 

 Accounting Fundamentals 

 Personal Finance 

 The Analysis and Valuation of Stocks 

 Marketing Your Business on the Internet 

 Writing for ESL 

 Spanish in the Classroom 

 Creativebug 

 Working In Acrylic Ink: A Daily Sketchbook Practice 

 Halloween Paper Doll Witches 

 Watercolor Lettering - A Daily Practice 

 Painting Abstract Florals 

 Daily Portrait Challenge: 31 Days of Faces 

 Daily Painting Challenge: 31 Flowers to Paint with Yao Cheng 

 30 Coloring Pages with Courtney Cerruti, Lisa Congdon and Pam Garrison 

 Wrapped Rope Rainbow: 2/21/19 

 Daily Painting Challenge: 28 Acrylic Studies 

 Creative Sketchbooking  

Mango Languages 

 Spanish, Latin American 

 Japanese 

 Chinese, Mandarin 

 Italian 

 French 

 Legal, Spanish 

 German 



Page 22 of 25 
 

 Polish 

 Chinese, Cantonese 

 Russian 

 Arabic, Levantine 

Pronunciator 

 Spanish (Mexican) 

 French 

 English (American) 

 Arabic (Moroccan) 

 Irish 

 

Professional Development During Pandemic (staff learning post March 13, 

in response to serving the community during a pandemic) 

 
ILA Diversity Committee 

Programs and Exhibits Specialist and librarian Megan Young was selected to serve on the 

Illinois Library Association (ILA) Diversity Committee. Her term will begin this summer, 

with annual orientation for ILA committees and forum leadership taking place virtually 

on July 16. The Diversity Committee serves several objectives: to initiate and promote 

training and library services that address issues in diversity, and to identify and promote 

best practices and resources for diversity and inclusion in library profession and services.  

RAILS Webinar 

Collection Specialists Candy Rossin and Cyndi Hamann attended a RAILS webinar, 

Equity in Collections: Audits, Weeding, Purchasing & More, presented by Betsy Bird 

(Evanston Public Library collection development manager) that addressed collection 

diversity. 

Library Journal’s Day of Dialog  

Collection Supervisor Violet Jaffe and Collection Specialist Cyndi Hamann attended 

Library Journal’s Day of Dialog virtually. 

LACONI TSS: Technical Services, COVID-19 & Re-opening  

Collection Supervisor Violet Jaffe attended the LACONI TSS: Technical Services, 

COVID-19 & Re-opening meeting on June 19. 

 

 

 



Page 23 of 25 
 

Public Library Webinars 

ILL Assistant Jen Nitch attended the following webinars:  

 21st Century Librarians for 21st Century Libraries 

 All of Us Dementia Awareness for Public Libraries 

 Everything Library Trustees Need to Know During COVID -19 

 COVID-19: Safety Tips for Opening your Library. 

Staying Current with Cataloging 

Cataloging Librarian Eve Lashley began attending a weekly online course on the newest 

descriptive cataloging standard for Resource Description and Access (RDA). The revised 

RDA Toolkit has an expected release date of December 2020. 

Evolving Manager Boot Camp 

Makerspace Branch Assistant Manager Chris Krueger attended a 3-day long Manager 

Boot Camp that covered topics including: interviewing, coaching and counseling. The 

program consisted of breakout group roleplaying and discussion. The hosting company, 

HR Source, asked his breakout group to stay after class on the final day so they could 

record their presentation for later use. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 24 of 25 
 

Customer Comments 

 Teen customer after picking out a stack of graphic novels: You have no idea how 

good it is to be back in a library again! 

 Email received from a tween’s parent: 

“Hi Kerry,   

I have been meaning to write you to let you know how much my tween has been enjoying 

the Tween Tuesdays.  She has regularly been on the link each Tuesday, making sure not 

to miss one and remaking many of your recipes.  The mug cakes are a favorite, though 

any of the recipes were fun for her to follow.    

Thanks again for your work!” 

 During a readers advisory interaction submitted via Kids’ World contact form: 

“Additionally, my 5th grader has really enjoyed your Tween Tuesday videos!   Especially 

the cooking ones.   They were a big hit!   Thank you for developing that platform during 

the shelter in place.   It was perfect.” 

 Early Literacy Services Supervisor Rebecca King received a thank you note from 

story time regular Ryan and his mom. “Ho Ho Watanay” mentioned in the note is 

from the song “Sleep, Sleep Little One” that she shared in a virtual story time, with 

verses sung in English, Iroquois and French. 

          



Page 25 of 25 
 

 To Teri, in charge of the Bookmobile. I want to confirm what you already know - 

that you and your Bookmobile Team are the best. I was so happy to see the 

Bookmobile at my stop and even happier to see Renu (Khurpa) and Al (Garcia). 

They went above and beyond. I cannot say enough good things about your team. If 

you don't know yet, this is Lena form Lake Arlington stop - your biggest and most 

grateful patron of the bookmobile. Thank you and your team for everything they 

do. - Lena S 

 

 Al (Garcia) really does things that customers don’t expect and is always so 

wonderful! - Glenn B 

 

 On Tuesday afternoon, I drove through the library garage in order to pick up four 

items on hold (I received my email notifications over the weekend.)  I want to let 

you know that the curbside pick-up process was PERFECT!  I arrived at the 

AHML moments after the crazy wind/microburst/rain storm rolled through 

town.  Yet, there were my library co-workers smiling and guiding me through the 

pick-up process.  Pick up was contactless and quick.  GREAT JOB thinking 

through an efficient and easy way to get much-needed reading materials into my 

hands.  – Laura W  

 

 I just returned from the library to return and pick up books that were on hold. 

What a great, efficient, and safe system you have designed. No waiting, clearly laid 

out, and put together to insure the safety of your customers and staff. Another 5 

star event!! Kudos to you! – Chat customer 

 

 I took advantage of the drive through to get my items. Love it! – Kate H 

 

 (Regarding hold pickup) Thank you SO much.  This makes me happy!! – 

Catherine B 
 

 

 



Service Point Traffic

12,872 -85% 12,453 -85% 0 -100.00% -86.20%

86,523 last year 81,959 last year 1,527 last year last year 

Circulation 

67,549 -61% Resident 127 -82.06% 94 -79.74%

172,688 last year (issued) 708 last year 464 last year 

Non-Resident 9 -94.92% 27 -94.88%

(Registered) 177 last year 527 last year 

Programs 

2,754 -71% 116 -61%

9,414 last year 296 last year 

Questions

4,730 -74% -76% 229.28%

18,043 last year 5,195 last year last year 

Technology Usage

407 -95.61% -9.32%

9,276 last year 101,387 last year 

Card Holders Lent

Metrics for June 2020

Total visits Main Library visits Sr Center Visits Bookmobile Visits

419
3,037

Total Circulation Library Cards Issued Interlibrary Loan 

Borrowed

1,248 1,518

62,019

Program Attendance Number of Programs Cost of Programs

$3,535
$700 funded by FOL

Reference Questions 
Reference Questions (via call center) Chat sessions

461

Public Computer Use Website Visits 

91,935

42%

5%

53%

Children Circulation by Format
Print Book
Circulation

Audiovisual
Circulation

Downloadable
Circulation

34%

13%

53%

Circulation by Format
Print book
circulation

Audiovisual
circulation

Downloadable
circulation

29%

18%

53%

Adult Circulation by Format
Print Book
Circulation

Audiovisual
Circulation

Downloadable
Circulation

62%

1%

37%

Circulation by Audience
Adult Circulation

Teen Circulation
(grades 7-12)

Children's
Circulation
(up to grade 6)



June 2020 June 2019
% change from last 

June
Jan 2020-June 2020 Jan 2019-June 2019

% change from last 
YTD

Total circulation 67,549 172,688 -61% 551,979 968,888 -43%
Adult circulation 41,901 94,282 -56% 345,603 561,215 -38%
Teen circulation 921 3,534 -74% 6,114 14,148 -57%
Children circulation 24,727 74,872 -67% 200,262 393,525 -49%
Print book circulation 22,431 94,345 -76% 213,261 503,781 -58%
Audiovisual circulation 8,766 50,073 -82% 115,696 300,616 -62%
Downloadables circulation 35,247 18,756 88% 199,488 111,495 79%
Self-check as % of main floor circ 60% 67% -7% 48% 66% -19%
Circulation to reciprocal borrowers 1,194 10,486 -89% 25,543 61,340 -58%
ILLs borrowed for our customers 94 464 -80% 1,235 2,908 -58%
ILLS lent to other libraries 27 527 -95% 1,546 2,957 -48%
Resident cards issued 127 708 -82% 1,369 2,347 -42%
Reciprocal cards registered 9 177 -95% 371 979 -62%
Reference questions 4,730 18,043 -74% 44,206 102,774 -57%
Number of Programs 116 296 -61% 1,096 1,813 -40%
Program attendance 2,754 9,414 -71% 33,267 48,822 -32%
Public computer use 407 9,276 -96% 20,420 54,321 -62%
Website visits 91,935 101,387 -9% 571,685 592,148 -3%
In-person visitors 12,872 86,523 -85% 210,362 506,598 -58%
New & Popular - % of adult coll 9.0% 8.3% 8% 8.1% 8.3% -3%
New & Popular - % of circ 38.6% 35.2% 9% 32.1% 34.6% -8%
Kids' New & Popular - % of KW coll 5.1% 4.5% 12% 4.4% 4.6% -5%
Kids' New & Popular - % of circ 14.6% 15.6% -6% 12.3% 15.9% -30%
Individual Staff Sessions 98 91 7% 397 659 -66%
Volunteer hours 291 2,965 -90% 6,415 14,769 -130%

AHML - DASHBOARD - June 2020



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

20,000
30,000
40,000
50,000
60,000
70,000
80,000
90,000

100,000
110,000

Adult Circulation

Previous 12 Months Current 12 Months

0
10,000
20,000
30,000
40,000
50,000
60,000
70,000
80,000

Children's Circulation

Previous 12 Months Current 12 Months

50

150

250

350

450

550

650

750

Resident Library Cards Issued

Previous 12 Months Current 12 Months

10,000
15,000
20,000
25,000
30,000
35,000
40,000
45,000
50,000
55,000

Downloadables Circulation

Previous 12 Months Current 12 Months



Notes Relating to Circulation 

 ESL hosted 32 programs and had 227 participants over the course of the month.   

 

 Curbside was extremely busy with 6,255 cars coming through to pick up holds. In comparison, June 2019 had 6,187 cars at 

drive up while being open the full range of hours/days. On the busiest day, 543 cars stopped by in the six hours we were 

open, which averages to 91 cars per hour. 

 

 Electronic checkouts are up 87.9% for the month, with 35,247 total eCheckouts. These eCheckouts represent 52.2% of all 

checkouts in June.  

 

 This month, 127 residents signed up for library cards via online registration or in person. With 62,019 AH residents holding 

library cards, this in an increase of 5.9% over last year and represents 83% of our community.  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Program Sessions

Previous 12 Months Current 12 Months

1,000

3,000

5,000

7,000

9,000

11,000

13,000

15,000

Program Attendance

Previous 12 Months Current 12 Months



 
 

 

 

10

20

30

40

50

Attendance Per Program

Previous 12 Months Current 12 Months

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

Reference Questions (Library Wide)

Previous 12 Months Current 12 Months

30,000

50,000

70,000

90,000

110,000

130,000

150,000

170,000

Website Visits

Previous 12 Months Current 12 Months


	072120 Board Agenda
	Item 1 061620 Board Meeting Minutes
	Item 2 071320 Special Board Meeting Minutes jd md
	Item 3 Financial Report ending June 30
	Financial Report ending June 30
	Detail Budget Report

	Item 4 Check Register for Period Ending June 30
	4 check register cover sheet
	4 check register body

	Item 5 Makerspace Project Update
	Item 6 Library Staffing and Customer Service Changes Due to Covid-19
	Item 7 2021 Budget Targets
	2021 Budget Targets Memo FINAL
	Budget Targets 2021 July 13 2020 COW
	Budget Target Footnotes 2021 July 13 2020 COW

	Item 8 Annual Financial Report
	8 Review of Annual Financial Report Memo FINAL
	Item 8 Annual Financial Report
	8 2019 Final AFR Annual Financial Report
	8 Booklet Auditors Communication to Trustees FINAL
	Auditors Communication to Trustees
	Auditors Communication to Trustees last page



	Item 9 2019 Budget versus Actual
	9 Review of 2019 Budget versus actual results Memo
	9 Budget versus Actual body

	July 2020 Directors Report and Dashboards
	Directors Report July 2020
	Metrics Summary June 2020
	June 2020

	JA Statistics 2020
	Dashboard June

	Financial Dashboard 2020 Board Meeting 07_21_20
	Dashboard Charts June Stats for July Board




